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2000/2001 Year at a Glance « Rod Eddington joins

the company as Chief Executive * £145m improvement
in pre-tax profits * Excellent customer reaction to new
Club World, Club Europe and World Traveller Plus
products ¢ Concorde grounded ¢ Talks regarding a
potential merger with KLM called off » Restructuring and
repositioning of Gatwick * Reorganisation of shorthaul
operations underway * Decision to sell go and agreement
to purchase British Regional Air Lines * More than 3
million people enjoy the view from the British Airways
London Eye in its first year of operation
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Statement from the Chairman

Group pre-tax profit for the year was £150 million, an
improvement of £145 million over the 1999/00 result.
The profit attributable to shareholders amounted to
£114 million. The Board has recommended a final
dividend of 12.8 pence per share which, when added
to the interim dividend, produces a total of 17.9 pence,

the same as last year.

Lord Marshall of Knightsbridge, Chairman
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Year in review

The result represents a significant and very welcome turnaround in
your company’s fortunes. Clearly, this did not occur by chance but
came as a consequence of our well-defined business strategy and
the commitment of our people to deliver it.

~ Qur objective remains to cut back on activity which has little

or no chance of contributing to profit, in order to concentrate on
business which does. It is being achieved through careful adjustment
to fleet, network and group structure, together with continuous
investment in customer service innovation.

This was Rod Eddington's first year as Chief Executive, resulting in

a robust approach to problemn areas and a marked improvement in
morale throughout your company. The morale factor is crucialin a
service business and its importance became evident as we faced a
range of adversities which distupted operations at various times during
the year: severe bad weather in the United Kingdom; the grounding of
Concorde; and a serious computer systems failure. Furthermore, we
had to contend with economic slowdown in some important markets,
mast notably the USA; the effects on travel and tourism to Britain of
foot and mouth disease; and the alarming rise in the price of oil which
increased our fuel costs, net of hedging, by £264 million.

Operational statistics reflect the way the company is being
restructured in the market place. On ‘mainline’ services the total
number of passengers carried reduced slightly, with capacity
decreasing by more than 3 per cent. Cargo revenue rose, year

on year, as did volume and yield. The overall load factor was 67
per cent, a small increase. Seat factor showed a slight improvement.
Total revenue increased by 3.8 per cent to £9.3 billion.

There were two highly significant trends, however. The first was the
increase of 4.2 per cent in premium traffic and of 7.7 per cent in
average passenger yield. This was achieved in the face of intense
competitive pressure in every network sector and indicates the
comparative strength of the British Airways brand. The second
imporiant trend is the continuing way that costs are being held down.
Excluding fuel, costs continue to reduce and productivity te improve.




Customer service

Last year saw the new range of products and services presented
under the label of ‘Air Travel For The 21st Century’ becoming
available on many more routes across the network. It includes the
refurbished First Class, the Club World ‘flat bed,” the improved Club
Europe and World Travelier services and the completely new class,
World Traveller Plus. These air travel innovations, especially the
new Club World, have received an enthusiastic response from both
customers and industry observers.

On the ground, the programme to introduce the ‘Terraces Lounge’
concept at key airports continues apace. Shortly after the end of
the financial year, | opened the "Terraces facility in our substantially
modernised terminal at JFK International Airport, New York.

British Airways’ Terraces Lounges create a unique airport
environment for premium customers and are proving to be a
distinct competitive advartage.

Increasingly, advanced information and communications technology
is being applied to bring enhancement and innovation to customer
service at all levels. Recently, for example, we joined forces with

BT to provide a flight information and passenger check in service
via mobile Internet. The airline also announced that discounts would
be provided for customers making bookings on the British Airways
website. We intend 1o be at the forefront of the technological
revolution in airline service.

Dispesals and investments

A number of disposal and investment decisions were made

during the year. They resulted in the sale of the French subsidiary,
Air Liberté; of our interest in Hogg Robinson; and of the low-fare
carrier, go which is expected to be completed shortly. Principally
because of the Air Liberté sale, losses on disposals amounted to £69
million, compared with profits of £249 million in the previous year.

Foltowing the acquisition of CityFlyer Express, the airline is being
fully integrated into mainline operations at Gatwick, We also invested
in Online Travel Portal and decided that, from May, 2001, our

UK outbound holfiday businesses would be merged with those of
Thomas Cook.

Shortly after the end of the year under review, the Secretary of State
for Trade and Industry allowed our offer to acquire British Regional
Air Lines Group (BRAL) to go ahead without reference. BRAL, our
major UK regional franchise partner, is being merged with our
wholly-owned subsidiary, Brymon Airways. :

Following completion of the privatisation of |beria Lineas Aéreas de
Espafia S A of Spain in April, 2001, an invesiment rebate of more
than £90 million was received. This represented the difference in
value of the £154 million paid for our 9 per cent shareholding in
March 2000 and beria’s share price at flotation,

Alliance development

The oneworld™ alliance, of which British Airways is a founding partner,
was boosted during the year with the inclusion of Aer Lingus and
LanChile. The consortium now has eight full members and 23 affiliate
aitlines, Collectively, they serve 566 destinations in 133 countries,
with a combined fleet of almost 2,000 aircraft and 274,000
employees. oneworld accounts for an annual 200 million passengers.
Now in its third year of operation, oneworld has developed a wide
range of initiatives to the mutual benefit of its partners and their
customers. The world-wide reach and critical customer mass
provided by oneworld remains important to the global development
of British Airways. The alliance’s full membership comprises:

Aer Lingus, American Airlines, British Airways, Cathay Pacific,
Finnair, Iberia, LanChile and Qantas.

High-tevel discussions continue with American Airlines on ways to
build the relationship between the two carriers, on both a bi-lateral
basis and within oneworld. Code-share agreements have been
extended with Aer Lingus, Iberia and Qantas.

Zambian Air Services became our 12th franchise partner when it
commenced opetations at the beginning of 2001 and carries the
British Airways brand on services within East and Central Africa.

Qur people

| have mentioned some of the difficulties of the year elsewhere in
this report, but | do wish to emphasise how much the efforts of our
people are appreciated not just at times of stress, but also in the
normal, day-to-day operation of your company. The recovery in our
financial performance is testimony to their professional commitment
and appetite for success. The process of change and restructure still
has some way to go (and, indeed, never really finishes}, but our
employees ¢an pride themselves on a morale-boosting performance
in the year under review.

As ever, | extend thanks to members of the executive management
team for their dedicated leadership of the company. | also wish to
record my usual appreciation of the support, guidance and sound
judgement provided by my fellow Board members, for whom the
interests of shareholders remains paramount.

Board changes

In December, we announced the appointment of Mike Street, the
airline’s Director of Customer Service and Operations, to the Board.
Shareholders will be asked to elect him formally at the forthcoming
annual meeting. Mike Street has made an immense contribution over
his 37-year career with the company. | was personally delighted that
he agreed to serve British Airways at the highest level.

Derek Stevens, Chief Financial Officer since February 1989,
retires from the company and the Board at the end of August, 2001,
Derek has served us extremely well, with considerable skill and
comimitment through some of our most difficult and also our most
successful periods. He leaves with our thanks and good wishes for
a well-deserved and fulfilling retirement. John Rishton, 43, will
succeed Derek as Chief Financial Officer on September 1, 2001,
when it is intended that he will also join your Board. Currently
Financiat Controller, Commercial, he has been with the airline
since 1994, prior to which he held senior financial positions with
the Ford Motor Company.

Captain Colin Barnes, who has served as non-executive Director
and Chairman of the Board's Safety Review Committee since 1991,
steps down in September. He had a long and distinguished career
with British Airways, culminating as Chief Pilot and Director of
Flight Crew. Since his retirement from flying duties, Captain Barnes’
experience has been highly valued at Board level and it is

intended that Captain Mike Jeffery, who retires as Director of Flight
Operations in June, 2001 will succeed him as a Board member and
Chairman of the Safety Review Committee from October 1, 2001,

Sustainable business

The Community Relations and Environment departments have been
combined to create the new Sustainable Business Unit. This move
further emphasises our long-held recognition of the need to take into
account the environmental and social implications of business activity
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Statement from the Chairman
Continued

alongside the economic impact. We remain committed to the
programme for increased environmental care and consideration and
our 2000/01 Environment Report will be available to shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting. The annual Tourism for Tomorrow
Awards, designed to promote sustainable tourism development, are

now in their tenth year and have attracted more than 1,000 entries
over that period.

Corporate social responsibility is being taken very seriously, as
demonstrated by our recent signing of the internationally-recognised
Sullivan Principles. The company Code of Conduct which lays

down a framework of business ethics will be subject to ongoing
review and revision.

Responsibility as a good neighbour to the communities in which
we work, manifests itself in many ways. The Change For Good
appeal operated in association with UNICEF has now raised £12.5
million to help deprived and distressed children around the world.
A fund of £120,000 and programme of travel awards help support
employees involved in charitable activities. In addition to established
staff charities such as Dreamflight, Operation Happy Child, Cargo
Kidney Fund and Sreepur Village orphanage in Bangladesh,

a number of others are receiving support and encouragement.
They include: Nyumba, caring for HIV-paositive children in Africa;
Chiildren of Makuru, helping street children in Kenya; Nyanyano
School, in Ghana; an educational and sports training programme
in South Africa; and the BA Runners which act as couriers for the
delivery of emergency medical aid to the world's trouble spots.

The airiline and its people are always ready to come to the assistance
of communities facing disaster of one kind or another. The major

fund-raising and airlift of supplies for the earthquake victims in India
was a recent case in point.

Closer to home, the Community Learning Centre at Waterside has

been a resounding success, much appreciated by the communities
around our Heathrow headquarters,

Mational Air Traffic Services

o March the Governmant selected The Airline Group, a consartium
of seven British airlines which includes British Airways, to be the
private sector partner for National Air Traffic Services [NATS).

The Airline Group will hold 46 per cent of the shareholding in NATS
and has pledged to manage the organisation on the basis of no
commercial return. It has committed to invest £1 billion in the UK's
air traffic control infrastructure over the next ten years. We regard
this development as the best-possible outcome to the Government's
Public-Private Partnership proposal for NATS, As the prime users of
NATS, the airlines who form the Airline Group have the greatest
incentive and commitment to safety. Our bid focused on investment
and the group will provide NATS with the commercial and project
management skills to deliver safely a higher operating capacity - and
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hence fewer delays — more quickly and with lower risk than had been
previously planned by NATS.

Significant improvement in the scope and efficiency of air traffic
systems will be crucial to the vital work of further developing the
UK's overall civil aviation infrastructure, especially in the Southeast
of England. This subject which has an obvious bearing on your
company’s future development, is discussed elsewhere in this
Report by the Chief Executive.

Concorde

Following the tragic accident in Paris, we have been working very
closely with the authorities in Britain and France, as well as the
airframe and engine manufacturers to understand the cause and
ensure that there are no ongoing safety implications for Concorde.
A number of ‘'super safety’” madifications were subsequently
recommended and are being implemented. At the time of writing,
final assessment and approval for Concorde to return to service was
awaited from government safety regulators. We remain canfident that
supersonic travel will again be available from British Airways before
too long. In the meanwhile, we are using the time to undertake a
£14 million package of refurbishment to Concorde passenger cabins.

Qutlook

Further implementation of the fleet, network and alliance strategy

is proceeding apace; and the continuing embodiment of our new and
improved products is maintaining competitive strength, Review of
the Gatwick network to stem losses is underway. Our UK subsidiaries
are being consolidated into a cohesive, complementary organisation.
Your company is evolving as a leaner, more agile and more profitable
business. We are committed to working closely with our staff and
trade unions as this evolution continues,

Qur strategic positioning is designed to serve us well in the long
term, but it should also help lessen the full impact of immediate
adversities such as the US economic downturn; the residual effects
on UK travel and tourism of the foot and mouth outbreak; and
historically high fuel prices.

Concentration on improving the UK infrastructure (terminal, runway
and surface access capacity), in ways compatible with legitimate
environmental and community concerns will be a priority. In
particular, we expect a positive Government decision on Terminal 5
at Heathrow soon into the new Parliament.

We will also be pressing for legislative change to allow industry
consolidation in Europe. This is an absolute necessity if European
airlines are o hold their own in the global market of the future.

Our principal objectives in the current year, however, will be to
achieve increased levels of value and quality for our customers
around the world; the continued support of our employees; and

increased profitability — all of which are expected to improve the
level of return for shareholders.

Lord Marshall of Knightsbridge, Chairman




Statement from the Chief Executive
| have enjoyed an exciting first year as British Airways’
Chief Executive and believe that with the help of our

staff the airline has begun its return to sustainable
long-term profitability.

Rod Eddington, Chief Executive

‘We have had to make tough choices over this period to majntain
the momentum of our business strategy, but these and the tireless
efforts of people throughout the airline will help us meet the
chaltenges that lie ahead,

Qver the past year we have:

« reduced our exposuie to unprofitable market segments, while
strengthening our position in profitable markets which depend
heavily on business trave! to and from the UK

« reduced our aircraft size on key routes and cut excess capacity,
while crucially maintaining the frequency of service to key
destinations

= delivered a programme of investment in state of the art
customer services

These measures have produced improved financial results and
underlined our leading role in the global aviation industry.

Much has taken place in support of this strategy over the past year
and i’s worth recounting some of the many highlights, to ifustrate
the pace of change in the airline,

Much of my time when | first arrived was taken up with the talks
with KLM. Of course, these came to nothing in the end, but i do
not feel it was time or effort wasted. You will have heard me talk on
several occasions about the need for consolidation in the European
airline industry. | make no apolagies for that. This is a lengthy
process {it took 30 years to achieve in the United States), but it is
both inevitable and necessary if we're to develop our position in the

long-term. And | intend that British Airways will be in the vanguard
of that process.

Consolidating the industry or not, providing excellent customer
service 1o our passengers is a priority for British Airways. And one
product above all, has become synonymous with our return to form.
The innovative Club Warld ‘flat beds’ have been a great success and
| hope you get the chance to try them for yourseif. They are a symbol
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Statement from the Chief Executive
Continued

of our continued commitment to be number one in terms of service
and comfort.

Equally, } have been at pains 1o stress that British Airways is not just
about business class passengers. Some 85 per cent of our passengers
travel economy. They are vital to us and that is why we have made
improvements to our World Traveller product and have introduced
our new cabin — World Travelfer Plus, for those economy passengers

wishing to pay a small premium for extra legroom, extra comfort and
a dedicated cabin.

Let me be absolutely clear on this. We will atways offer vaiue to ali

customners through delivery of quaiity products and services at the
best possible price.

Cur goal is simple, to be the customer’s choice — the airline of first
choice in our key markets. That is why we have been investing more
than £600 million in new customer services and products.

However, this business is not just about ‘new this and new that'. It is
about quality service, quality service, quality setvice. That is why we

are in yegular contact with over 50,000 customers to keep close tabs
on how we are doing.

One of the strategic actions taken to fundamentally improve
profitability is that of changing what we do at Gatwick. The review
of operations at Gatwick, announced in December, has led to a shift
from previous attempts to build Gatwick as a second airline hub
and a refocusing of the operation gver the next two years.

We will significantly reduce longhauf operations at Gatwick, building
Heathrow as the main intercontinental hub. This will mean cutting
longhaul Gatwick destinations from 43 to 25 by suspending around
half a dozen unprofitable routes, moving 10 key longhaul routes to
Heathrow ~ including Miami, Rio and Sao Paulo.

Yet, British Alrways will still be the largest operator at Gatwick.
We remain committed to serving many shorthaul destinations and

Gatwick has a key role to play in offering customers quality services
to those destinations.

Heathrow - our major international aviation hub - is a strategic
nationat asset. It must be developed for the good of everyone.

British Alrways continues to argue the case for improvements in
infrastructure that will support the growth of the UK economy and a
successful aviation industry. The proposed Air Transport White Paper
will provide a policy framework for the future of aviation and airports
in the UK for the next 30 years. We must make sure we get it right.

We must get it right, not least because your company is a great
company. As the UK's sole global network carrier, British Airways

is at the heart of the UK aviation industry. Employing an average
55,000 people in British Airways mainline, we carry 36 million
passengers each year - that's more international passengers than any
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other airline, with a global network spanning some 268 destinations
and 97 countries.

In short, British Ajrways is the UK's major airline and a world
renowned business. As an Australian, 1 can see clearly that it
is in Britain's interest for it to stay that way.

Concorde, the flagship of our fleet, is very important to British Airways.
Last year's Air France accident was a terrible tragedy. We continue
to work on the issues raised by the incident, and are confident that
the aircraft will be back in service once these have been addressed,

Finally, et me address a faw other matters of importance

During the year we confirmed our intention to sell the no frills airline
2o ~ it does not fit with our full service brand - and we announced
plans to buy the British Regional Air Lines Group.

We have also marked the first anniversary of the Londan Eye — the
‘smile high club’ — which has allowed your company to make such
2 huge contribution to London's skyline.

We are making real progress on our journey to sustainable
profitability, We recognise that we will always be affected by outside
avents. Fuel prices were a big problem last year, And everyone is
keeping a very close eye on the US for signs of the economic
slowdown there. Closer to home, the foot and mouth crisis’ in the
UK has clearly affected passenger numbers. As | write this, they are
stiil down, although we expect them 1o come back strongly as the
countryside is given the ‘all clear’.

In the meantime, Lord Marghall and | have taken every opportunity
to argue the case for ‘business as usual’. In the United States and

elsewhere, we are always delighted when British Airways can play
an ambassadorial role for Britain.

In ending, | would just like to say some ‘thank yous': to our
customers; our employees and our shareholders, | said a year ago
that we had to work hard to put a smile back on peoples’ faces.

1 think we have done that. Now, we will work deoubly hard to
keep it there.

i
Rod Eddington, Chief Executive




Operating and financial review

Background to Financial Performance
The following table sets out the year-over-yeat percentage changes in
group operating revenue and selected operating statistics for the two
years ended March 31, 2001:
% Increase/{Decrease)
Year ended March 31

2001 2000
Group operating revenue 338 0.5
Group operations
Volume (RTK} (1.3) 23
Capacity (ATK]) (2.5) 29
Yield {Revenue/RTK) 56 {2.1]
Revenye

British Airways scheduled services provide the principal contribution
0 group operating revenue. In each of the two years ended March
31, 2001 and March 31, 2000, traffic revenue accounted for
approximately 91 per cent of group operating revenue. The level

of revenue generated by these services is determined by the volume
sold (measured in Revenue Tonne Kilometres, RTK) and the yield
achieved (revenue per RTK). The year ending March 31, 2001 saw
the first fall in volume offered (measured in Available Tonne
Kilometres, ATK) since privatisation. As a result of an increase in
yields more than offsetting the volume reduction, traffic revenues
have increased by 4.2 per cent to £8,432 million,

Volume of traffic carried

In the year to March 31, 2001, group RTK flown declined by
1.3 per cent, with growth in the mainline operation offset by
reductions in subsidiaries, principally as a result of the disposal
of Air Liberté at the start of the year.

Capacity

Diuring the period under review, capacity in the mainline operations
declined as a result of the business strategy of operating smaller
aircraft, albeit on increased frequencies. The capacity reduction

fell further at the group level due to the disposal of Air Liberté,
despite growth in CityFlyer Express and go. Excluding the disposal
of Air Liberté, the fleet grew by only four aircraft during the year.
The group’s business strategy means that mainline capacity over
the next twa years will continue to decline,

Yield

In addition to changes in the level of demand, movements in yield
are determined principally by changes in four factors: capacity, fare
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Qperating and financial review
Continued

levels, the mix of traffic between and within the various classes
of service offered and exchange rates. Each of these factors has
influenced yield in the last year.

Seasonal variations

Traditionally, the group makes mast of its operating income between
April and QOctober each year as demand is higher during this period;
most costs are incurred evenly throughout the year,

Operating expenses Year ended March 31

2001 2000 2001 2000

% Increase/

(£ millien) (Decrease)
Employee costs 2376 2481 (3] 5
Depreciation and amaortisation 715 648 10 5
Aircraft operating lease cosis prA| 180 16 27

Fuel and oil costs
Engineering and other
aircraft costs 662 651
Landing fees and en route charges 645 682 (5) {7}
Handling charges, catering

1,102 804 37 i4

and other operating costs 1,303 1,328 21 4
Selling costs 1,135 1,188 (5) {1
Accommodation, ground

equipment costs and

currency differences 739 874 (15) 16

8,898 83856 1 4

Employee costs are the largest single component of group
operating expenses. Fuel and oil costs fluctuate greatly and are

a cost component over which British Airways has only limited
control. Changes in fuel costs in sterling principally reflect changes
in the volume consumed, the price of aviation kerosene and the
dollar/sterling exchange rate (most aviation fuel is priced in US
dotiars). In the year to March 31, 2001, fuel and 0il costs increased
by 37 per cent or £298 million due to average dollar fuel price
increases of 46 per cent, partially offset by hedging.

British Airways operates a hedging strategy to reduce the exposure
to short-term variation in fuel costs.

Results of operations

Group profits before tax for the year were £150 million; at an
operating level profits were £380 million.
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Business performance

The year-over-year improvement in operating profit reflected the
benefits from our strategy of operating smaller aircraft, on higher
frequencies and creating a higher mix of premium passengers. The
benefits from these actions and continued cost efficiencies more than
offset adverse impacts from fuel price rises and adverse exchange
rate changes. Passenger yields (passenger revenue per RPK)
increased by 7.7 per cent in the mainline operations, the biggest
year-over-year improvement since privatisation.

In line with expectations unit costs rose by 3.1 per cent. Excluding
the impact of higher fuel prices, group unit costs fell 0.3 per cent.
Productivity improved by 1.8 per cent, despite capacity reductions.
Operating margin rose by 3.2 points to 4.1 per cent.

Far the year ended March 31, 2001, group operating revenue
increased by 3.8 per cent to £8,278 million on a flying programme
2.5 per cent smaller in ATK.

Mainline scheduled passenger traffic (RPK) declined by 0.7 per cent
while capacity (ASK) was reduced by 3.3 per cent. Passenger load
factor for the year was 71.7 per cent, up 1.9 points on the previous
year. Yields {passenger revenue per RPK) increased by 7.7 per cent.
This reflected an improvement in the mix of premium passengers, a
richer mix of fare types within cabins and benefits from a weakening
of sterling against dollar based currencies.

In Cargo, volumes were up 4.3 per cent compared with last year
whilst yields increased by 1.2 per cent; overall sales increased
4.1 per cent from £556 million to £579 million.

Unit costs (net operating expenditure per ATK) were 3.1 per cent
higher thar a year ago, Excluding higher fuel prices and adverse
exchange rate impacts, unit costs would have fallen 2.4 per cent,
This reflects cost efficiency actions, including lower cost of sales,
e-procurement initiatives and productivity and process improvements.

The average number of employees in the group fell by 4.6 per cent
to 62,175. In terms of average manpower equivalent (MPE), the
decrease was 4.3 per cent 1o 62,844. Productivity, as measured in
terms of group ATKs per MPE, was up by 1.8 per cent.

Employee costs reduced by 4.2 per cent to £2,376 million, reflecting
teduced staff numbers from efficiency actions and the disposal of
Air Liberté, together with lower restructuring charges. These benefits
were partially offset by wage awards.

Depreciation and amortisation costs increased by 10.3 per cent

to £715 million reflecting the increased value of the aircraft fleet,
principally from the addition of further Boeing 777 aircraft, together
with new property such as the New World Carge Centre and
equipment. Aircraft operating lease costs increased 16.3 per cent to
£221 million, principally as a result of the introduction of additionai
Airbus A319 and Boeing 737-500 in the mainline fleet together with
the full year impact of CityFiyer Express. These were partially offset
by savings from the disposal of Air Liberté,

Fuel and oil costs increased by 37.1 per cent 10 £1,102 million,
due to average fuel price increases of 46 per cent, partially offset
by hedging, and the adverse impact of the stronger dollar. Partially
offsetting these increases were efficiencies from smaller, newer
aircraft and savings from the disposal of Air Liberté,

Engineering and other aircraft costs increased by 0.2 per cent to
£662 million reflecting additional wet lease hiring and the full year
impact of CityFlyer Express together with adverse exchange rate
impacts; these were partially offset by further benefits of the new
more fuel-efficient aircraft joining the fleet, together with savings
from the disposal of Air Liberté,
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Landing fees and en route charges fell by 5.4 per cent to £645
million. This principally reflects benefits from the further recoveries
of passenger service charges and the sale of Air Liberté, Handling
charges, catering and other operating costs decreased by 1.9 per cent
to £1,303 million, as a result of increased catering cost efficiencies
and the disposal of Air Liberté, These savings were partially offset

by the inclusion of CityFiyer Express for the full year.

Selling and marketing costs decreased 4.5 per cent to £1,135 million.
Structural reductions in commission cost charges and lower
marketing spend were partially offset by the higher level of sales.

The sale of Air Liberté provided further cost saving benefits.

Accommodation, ground equiprment and currency differences fell
15.4 per cent, to £739 million, This reflected the non-repetition
of costs associated with the Year 2000 programme, benefits from

exchange differences on working capital items and savings from the
disposal of Air Liberté.

The drive for efficiency improvements continued throughout the
year and focused on the following areas:

+ Improving the productivity of our people

« Cost of sales reduction

« Reducing product spend by identifying elements of low
customer value

+ Optimising aircraft utilisation

- e-business exploitation

« Procurement efficiency

- Improving the Gatwick and Domestic operating structures

+ Improving the profitability of our subsidiaries

Geographical analysis

The strongest revenue growth was seen in the Africa, Middle
East and Indian sub-continent regions, where revenue by area

of destination increased by 6.9 per cent to £1,304 million, driven
by increases in capacity and improved seat factors. The Far East
and Australasia routes saw revenue increase by 6.5 per cent
whilst the Americas region revenue grew by 6.1 percent as a
result of increased seat factor and yield more than offsetting
reductions in capacity. In Americas yield particularly benefited

by an improved mix of prermium passengers. In turope, exciuding
the impact of the disposat of Air Liberté, revenues increased by
9.2 per cent reftecting seat factor and yield improvement on a
reduced capacity.

At the operating profit level all regions improved except for the Far
East and Australasia where the competitive market made it difficult
to increase fares to offset capacity reductions and increased fuel
costs, although seat factor improved 2.3 points to 74.4 per cent.

The Americas region was again the most profitable with an operating
profit of £470 million, up 53 per cent on a year ago. The Africa,
Middle East and Indian sub-continent returned profits of £92 million
and the Far East and Australasia lost £10 million. The structural

changes within Europe helped reduce losses by £138 million to
£172 million.

Alliance benefits

The world’s most global airline alliance grouping, oneworld, initially
including British Airways, American Airlines, Canadian International
Airlines, Cathay Pacific and Qantas was launched in February 1999,

Iberia and Finnair joined the group in September 1999 although in
June 2000 Canadian Airlines left the alliance following its purchase
by Air Canada. At the same time LanChile and Aer Lingus joined
as the eighth and ninth members. Co-operation across the alliance
is underway in a number of areas that benefit both customers and
airline effectiveness. oneworld offers a substantial package of
customer benefits, including reciprocal reward and recognition
programmes, Common jounge access, smoother transfers, increased
customer support and greater value,

This year, onewarld has been at the forefront of introducing new
services and benefits for our customers including the oneworld visit
passes and improved customer service through co-located airport
and sales facilities in a number of cities,

Additionally, in the last year oneworld established a central
management office, based in Vancouver, Canada, to drive future
growth and customer service improvements.

Bilateral discussions with American Airlines regarding intended
co-operation across the Atlanitic and linked to the UK/US “open
skies” negotiations continue, The relationship continues to develop
concurrent to these discussions, primarily through initiatives under
the oneworld framework.

The alliance with Cathay Pacific continues to add value. During the

year the two airlines entered the first phase of bilateral co-operation
with codesharing on selected British Airways domestic services and

we continue ta explore further development opportunities,

Bilateral arrangements with LOT Polish Airlines and Finnair continue.

Co-operation with JAL continues with revenue proration and
Frequent Flyer Programme agreements,

Qantas

Comimercial co-operation between British Airways and Qantas

{in which British Airways holds a 25 per cent stake) continue to
strengthen, providing customers on the "kangarco routes” with
improved flight departure times and routings.

The alliance is now entering its seventh year and continues to
generate additional value, with cost saving and revenue generating
co-operation taking place across almost all functions. Flights
operated under the Joint Services Agreement (the JSA), which serve
markets between the United Kingdom and Continental Europe,
Southeast Asta and Australia, have undergone considerable change
over the past yeat. In particular, the number of services operated
to the key Australian cities of Sydney and Melbourne have been
increased and the British Airways brand is available in Melbourne
again after an absence of several years. At the same time, Qantas
have taken over flying between Brisbane and Perth to the hub at
Singapore. The use of smaller Boeing 767 aircraft, on increased
frequencies, on these routes means that customers now have

a greater choice of fights at various times of the day than was
possible when Boeing 747 aircraft were in use.

During the year, alterations have been made to the mechanism used
to share benefits generated on JSA routes between British Airways
and Qantas. These changes now mean that costs as well as revenues
are shared. It is hoped that this will tead to further areas where value
can be added through co-operation to reduce costs,

During the course of the year, British Airways leased one
Boeing 747-400 to Qantas to help meet a temporary capacity

shorifall while product upgrades are embodied into Qantas
longhaut aircraft.
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The two organisations continue to co-ordinate sales and marketing
activities worldwide, investing in joint travel shops and airport
facilities, offering the very best of customer service to all passengers.

Qantas's pre-tax profit for the six months ended December 31, 2000
(inctuded together with the six months ended June 30, 2000 in the
March 31, 2007 resuit) amounted to A$416 million, an increase of
A$2 million on the corresponding period last year, after excluding
prior year abnormal items, Group profit after tax amounted to A$264
million, down 22 per cent. The prior year result included the benefit
of A$82 million from a further sale of part of the investment in
Equant NV and an abnormal tax credit of A%45 million. Revenue for
the six months was A$5.1 billion, up 13.1 per cent compared to [ast
year. Passenger revenue increased by 14.6 per cent; excluding the
favourable impact of exchange rate movements, the increase was

10 per cent and was due to growth in RPKs of 10.4 per cent offset
by a deterioration in yield of 0.5 per cent.

The increase in total expenditure, including interest, amoynted to
16 per cent. Excluding the unfavourabie impact of movements in
foreign exchange rates, this increase armounted to 10.5 per cent and
was mainly due to costs associated with an 8.7 per cent increase in
capacity, and higher fuet costs. Costs per ASK, after excluding
exchange movements, increased by 1.6 per cent,

Significant capacity increases in both the international and
domestic markets were the driving factor in ravenue growth, The
increase in passenger volumes exceeded capacity growth in both
networks, causing an increase in the overall passenger load factor
of 1.2 percentage points.

[beria

Following the acquisition of a 9 per cent stake in Iberia, work
continues to identify potential areas for co-operation, The two
airlines are currently reviewing opportunities within the Latin/Central
America countries, where codesharing on selected flights and joint
operations have the potential to realise significant joint benefits.

Iberia’s profit before tax for the 12 months to December 31, 2000
{included in the March 31, 2001 result) was Ptas 36.6 billion, up

18.5 per cent on the previous year. As a consequence of Iberia’s Initial
Public Offering, British Airways received a refund of £101 miition, for
the 10 per cent shareholding held by BA & AA Holdings Limited.

Franchising

As at March 31, 2001, 161 aircraft of 21 different types have

been franchised in British Ajrways livery. These operate to 167
different destinations wortldwide, of which 79 are additional to the
British Airways mainline network. During the year Mational Jet ltalia,

based in Rome, and Zambian Air Services, based in Lusaka, became
new franchise partners.
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Share of operating profit in associates

British Airways' share of operating profits from associated
undertakings decreased by £11 million to £64 millien during the
year, principally due to initial losses on Online Travel Portal Limited
and Iberia, and decreased profits from Qantas.

Loss on sale of fixed assets and investrnents

Losses on disposals of fixed assets and investments for the year
were £69 million, reflecting primarily the disposal of Air Liberté in
May 2000 and losses on aircraft sales. Our share of Iberia’s profits
from the sale of its investment in Amadeus, was a partial offset. Last
year profits of £249 militon arose, primarily from the disposals of

our investment in Galileo International and part of our investment
in Equant.

Net interest payable

Net interest expense for the year was £226 million. This included

a book credit for the revaluation of yen debts (used to fund aircraft
acquisitions) of £73 million, compared to 2 charge the previous year
of £126 million. The revaluation — a non cash item required by

standard accounting practice — results from the weakening of the
yen against sterking.

Taxation
The analysis of the tax charge is set out in Note 11 to the accounts.

There is no tax payable on operating results in the UK, as adjusted
for taxation, During the year the group has remitted profits to the
UK from subsidiaries and associates including those in Australia and
Spain. The LK tax charge arising on such profits has been partially
offset by credits for taxes paid overseas and by other losses
surrendered with the result that no UK taxation arises. Profits on
disposals have no taxation as such profits are covered by tax losses
from the current year. The tax charge for the year arises principally
from overseas particularly in respect of the group’s interest in Qantas.

During the year the Accounting Standards Board issued Financial
Reporting Statement 19 ‘Deferred Tax'. This requires companies to
recognise deferred tax on the full liability method (albeit a discounted
option is included within the standard) for accounting periods ending
on of after January 23, 2002. British Airways is currently reviewing
the most appropriate method of recognition and will implement this
change effective from April 1, 2001. British Airways currently
accounts for deferred tax under the partial liability method. The
deferred tax hability at March 31, 2001 if full provision was required
was £959 million {see note 38).

Earnings per share

For the twelve month period, profits attributable to shareholders
were £114 million, equivalent to earnings of 10.6 pence per share,
compared with losses of 2.0 pence per share [ast year.

Dividends

The Board recommends 2 final dividend of 12.8 pence per share,
giving a total dividend for the year of 17.9 pence per share, the
same as last year.

Ajrcraft fleet changes

The group fleet decreased by 28 during the year from 366 to
338 aircraft.
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The mainline fleet increased by 4 aircraft during the year reflecting
the continuation of the revised fleet strategy. Additions included

7 Boeing 777, 15 Airbus A319, 10 Boeing 737-500 and 5 Embraer
RJ145 gperated by Brymon. Mainline disposals during the year
consisted of 2 Boeing 747-200, 6 Boeing 767-300, & Boeing 757-
200, and 13 Boeing 737-200, as well as 2 de Havilland Canada
DHC-7s and 2 de Haviland Canada DHC-8s operated by Brymon.

The subsidiary fleet reduced by 32 aircraft. Additions were 7 Avro
RJ 100 for CityFlyer Express; Disposals were 1 Boeing 737-300 by
DBA, 1 ATR 72s and 5 ATR 42s operated by CityFlyer Express,
together with the 32 aircraft from the Air Liberté sale,

Concorde services remain suspended following the Air France
accident in July, Modifications to the fuel tank have begun and
we remain confident that the Civil Aviation Authority in the UK
will re-issue the certificate of airworthiness. While the safety
modifications are made, a £14 million package of product
improvements, including a new cabin interior and new seats,

is being installed. Services are expected 10 resume later this year.

The year saw the continuation of the new strategy of matching
capacity more closely to demand for point-to-point and premium
business traffic whilst reducing capacity available for less profitable
low yield connecting traffic. Shorthaul changes to support the new

fleet strategy included an additional 15 Airbus A319s and 10
Boeing 737-500s.

Capital expenditure

Group capital expenditure on tangible assets is set out in Note 15e
to the accounts.

The following table summarises group capital expenditure in the
two years ended March 31, 2001

Year end March 31

advance of carriage principally as a result of higher average yields
(£45 million} and an increase in trade creditors (£52 million),
reflecting increased spend on new products and higher fuel prices.
These were partially offset by the repayment due from iberia for part
of the initial investment and the impact of Air Liberté leaving the
group (£71 million),

Cash flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities totalled £1,251 million.
During the year, there was significant investment in tangible

fixed assets amounting to £1,115 million. The sale of the group’s
interest in Air Liberté, Travel Automation Services and Hogg
Robinson generated proceeds of £74 million. Other miscellaneous
disposals, mainly aircraft, contributed a further £265 million. The
net financing requirement for the year amounted to £331 million,

a decrease of £21 million over last year. Overall, cash decreased
by £30 million,

Leases and other financing arrangements

The following table sets out the movements in loans and capital
obligations under finance leases and hire purchase arrangements
for the two years ended March 31, 2001:

Finance leases, bank and hire purchase arrangements

Bank and

other loans

and hire
purchase  Finance Tosal
arrangements leases 2001 2000

1,043 5901 6,944 6,552

£million

Balance at April 1

New loans raised 214 - 214 60
2001 2000 Assumed from subsidiary
£miltion acguired during the year 43
Atreraft Jificati Divested from subsidiary
reratt, spares, modilications undertakings sold during the vear (23) (460 (69) -
and refurbishments ) :
¢ rof ; 192 55 Loans, finance leases and hire
(PnEt orre undd ° E)rogress payments} 1'220 §63 purchase arrangements undertaken
roperty and equipment to finance the acquisition of aircraft - 663 663 659
1,412 1,318 Repayment of amounts borrowed (228) (510) (738) (576}
Investments © 49 186 Effect of exchange rate changes 35 (6) 28 206
1,461 1,504 Balance at March 31

1,041 6002 7043 6944

Capital expenditure avthorised and contracted for but not provided
in the accounts amounts to £1,160 million {2000: £1,830 million).
The outstanding commitments include £189 million which relates
to the acquisition of 5 Boeing 777 on order and £915 million which
relates to the acquisition of Airbus A318, A319 and A320 aircraft
scheduled for delivery over the next four years. It is intended that
these aircraft will be financed partially by internal cash and partially

through external financing, including committed facilities arranged
prior to delivery.

Working capital

At March 31, 2001, net current liabilities were £862 million, up
£88 million on last year, This change principally reflects lower short-
term loans and deposits and cash {£210 million), increased sales in

In the above table, loans, finance lease obligations and hire purchase
arrangements denominated in foreign currency have been translated
into sterling at year-end exchange rates. Changes in the sterling value
of cutstanding foreign currency loans, finance lease obligations and
hire purchase arrangements which finance fixed assets amounted to
£135 million (2000: £44 million) and are taken to retained earnings,
together with the differenices arising on the translation of the related
foreign currency denominated assets. British Airways reduces its
exposure to movements in the LIS dollar/sterling exchange rate by
entering into forward purchase contracts to cover most of its future
capital expenditure commitments.

Six newly delivered mainline aircraft, comprising 2 Boeing 777-200 -
and 4 Airbus A319 were acquired on various US dollar denominated
cross border finance lease arrangements, and a further 5 new Boeing
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777-200 were funded by UK finance lease arrangements. In addition,
7 Airbus A319 were financed by way of sterling denominated
mortgage loans; and a further 4 Airbus A319 were financed on
sterling denominated extendible operating leases, bringing the
cumulative total to 10 such aircraft funded in this manner.

Met debt/total capital ratio

Borrowings, net of cash and short-term loans and deposits, amounted
to £6,223 million at the year end, an increase of £307 million on
last year, This is the result of new finance lease and hire purchase
arrangements (£663 million), exchange effects (E48 million), and a
fall in cash, short-term loans and deposits (£120 million, excluding
net cash outflow with sale of subsidiary undertakings) offset by a
reduction in borrowings (£524 million). Capital and reserves grew
£79 million, principally because of the write back of goodwill on the
Air Liberté disposal. The net debt/total capital ratio now stands at
64.5 per cent, a 0.6 point increase over last year mainly due to the
increased borrowing.

Share capital

On June 15, 2000, 145,000 ordinary shares were issued in exchange
for 341,000 Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 on the basis of one
ordinary share for every £2.34 of bonds held. During the year,
892,000 shares were issued on the exercise of options under
Employee Share Option Schemes.

QOther matters

Management of financial risks

The Board of Directors sets the treasury policies and objectives of
the group, and lays down the parameters within which the various
aspects of treasury risk management are operated. The Board

has approved a treasury governance statement, which outlines
British Airways' policies governing corporate and asset financing,
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, and cash and liguidity
management, The governance statement also lists the financial
instruments that the group's treasury function is authorised to

use in managing financial risk.

Responsibility for ensuring that treasury policies are consistent and
compatible with the agreed governance statement is vested in a
Finance Committee. Group Treasury irnplements the agreed policies
on a day-to-day basis with a view to meeting the treasury objectives
in a risk averse though cost effective manner. These objectives include
ensuring that the group has sufficient liquidity to meset its day-to-day
needs and to fund its capital investment programme and other
investments; deploying any surplus liquidity in a prudent and profitable
mManner; Managing currency, interest rate and credit exposures; and
managing the group’s relationship with a large number of banks and
other financial institutions world-wide.
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Financing and interest rate risk

Most of the group's debt is asset related, reflecting the capital-
intensive nature of the airline industry and the attractiveness of
aircraft as security to lenders and other financiers. These factors
are also reflected in the medium to long-term maturity profiles of
the group's loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements.
The incidence of repayments is shown in Note 29¢.

At March 31, 2001 approximately 40 per cent of the group’s
borrowings (after swaps), net of cash, short term loans and deposits,
were at fixed rates of interest, and 60 per cent were at floating rates.
The group’s borrowings are predominantly denominated in sterling,
US dollars and Japanese yen. Sterling represents the group’s natural
*home” currency, whilst a substantial proporiion of the group’s fixed
assets are priced and transacted in US dollars, see Note 24. The
Japanese yen liabilities arise as a result of the group’s substantial
Japanese cross-border hire purchase arrangements entered into
during the period 1990 to 1999. Details of the currency mix of the
group’s gross borrowings are shown in Note 29a.

Liquidity and investments

At March 31, 2001 the group had at its disposal short-term loans
and deposits and cash at bank and in hand amounting to £936
million (2000: £1,146 million). In addition, the group had undrawn
committed aircraft financing facilities totalling approximately
LIS$225 million (expiry date March 31, 2003), and a further £40
million (expiry date March 31, 2002] relating to its New Waorld Cargo
Centre, together with unused overdraft and revelving credit facilities
of £40 million. 1t also had undrawn uncommitted money market lines
of £65 million with a number of banks.

The group’s holdings of cash and short-term loans and deposits,
together with committed funding facilities and net cash flow, are
expected to be sufficient to cover the cost of all firm aircraft
deliveries due in the next two years. The acquisition of Boeing 777-
200 aircraft scheduled for delivery in the next year and Airbus A320
family aircraft scheduied for delivery during the next four years, is
expecied to be financed partially by cash holdings and internal cash
flow and partially through external financing, including committed
facilities arranged prior to delivery,

Because of the necassity to plan aircrafi orders well in advance of
delivery, it is not economic for British Airways to have committed
funding in place now for all outstanding orders, many of which relate
1o aircraft which will not be delivered for several years. British Airways’
policies in this regard are in line with the funding policies of other
airlines. In addition to aircraft related financing facilities, the group
has a number of qutstanding unsecured borrgwings of both a short

and long term nature, which may be used for the general purposes
of the group.

Surplus funds are invested in high quality short-term liquid
instruments, notably bank depaosits and asset-backed floating rate
notes. Credit risk is managed by limiting the aggregate exposure
to any individual counterparty, taking into account its credit rating.
Such counterparty exposures are regularly reviewed, and adjusted
as necessary. Accordingly, the possibility of material loss arising in

the event of non-performance by counterparties is considered to
be unlikely.

Foreign currency risk

The group does business in approximately 140 foreign currencies,
which account for approximately 50 per cent of group revenue and
40 per cent of operating expenses. The group generates a surplus in




most of these currencies. The principal exceptions are the US dollar
and sterling in which the group has deficits. These arise respectively
from capital expenditure, some leasing costs and fuel payable in US
dollars; the majority of staff costs, central overheads and leasing
costs are paid in sterling. However, the broad spread of currencies in
the business — many of which are linked to the US dollar - gives the
group a measure of protection against exchange rate mavements
and reduces the overall sensitivity of the group’s results to exchange
rate fluctuations. Nenetheless, the group can experience adverse or
beneficial effects. For example, if sterling weakened against the LIS
dollar and strengthened against other major currencies, the overall
effect would be likely to be adverse, while the reverse would be
likely to produce a beneficial effect.

The group seeks to reduce its foreign exchange exposure arising
from transactions in various currencies through a policy of matching,
as far as possible, receipts and payments in each individual currency.
Surpluses of convertible currencies are sold, either spot or forward,
for US dollars and sterling. The group has substantial liabilities
denominated in yen, which consist mainly of purchase option
payments falling due under various Japanese leveraged lease
arrangements maturing between 2003 and 201 1. The group expects
to utilise its strearn of yen traffic revenues as a natural hedge against
these maturing yen liabilities as they fali due.

The group's farward transactions in foreign currency are detailed
in Note 40.

In addition to the primary effects outlined above, exchange rate
movements can affect demand for services from passengers whose
decision to travel may alter as a result, While it is not possible o
quantify this effect, British Airways does monitor exchange rate

movements in an attempt to anticipate likely changes in the pattern
of demand.

Derivative financial instruments

British Airways uses derivative financial instruments {derivatives)
with off-balance sheet risk selectively for treasury and fuel risk
management purposes. The risk management strategy for both
treasury and fuel operations is implemented by the respective
departrments within the guidelines and parameters laid down by the
Board of Directors, and reflects a risk averse policy. The company's
policy is not to trade in derivatives but to use these instruments to
hedge anticipated exposures.

As part of its treasury risk management activities the company has
entered into a number of swap agreements in order to hedge its
direct exposure to interest rates. Single and cross currency swap

agreements outstanding at March 31, 2001 are summarised in
Note 41.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are used to cover a proportion of
future capital commitments denominated in US dollars and near term
future revenues and operating payments in a variety of currencies.
Forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at March 31, 2001
are summarised in Note 40.

Whilst the company considers the purchase of interest rate caps and
the entering into of forward rate agreements as bona fide exposure
management activities, it would not generally contemplate the opening
of new exposures by selling puts, calls or options. Other treasury
derivative instruments would be considered on their merits as valid and
appropriate risk management tools and, under the treasury governance
framework, require Board approval before adoption.

The company's fuel risk management strategy aims to provide the
airline with protection against sudden and significant increases
in oil prices while ensuring that the airline is not competitively

disadvantaged in a serious way in the event of a substantial fall in
the price of fuel.

The strategy operates within limits set by the Board and agreed
in detail by the Fuel Hedging Committee, which is made up of
representatives from relevant internal departments.

In meeting these objectives, the fuel risk management programme
allows for the judicious use of a number of derivatives traded on
regulated exchanges in London (the International Petroleum
Exchange) and New York (the New York Mercantile Exchange) as
well as on the Over The Counter (OTC) markets, with approved
counterparties and within approved limits. The instruments used
include futures and forward contracts, options, collars, caps and

swaps. The hedging committee reviews the use of these instruments
on a regular basis.

As derivatives are used for the purposes of risk management, they
do not expose the group to market risk because gains and losses on
the derivatives offset losses and gains on the matching asset, liability,
revenues or costs being hedged. Moreover, counterparty credit risk
is generally restricted to any hedging gain from time to time, and not
the principal amount hedged. Accordingly the possibility of material
loss arising in the event of non-performance by a counterparty is
considered to be unlikely.

Economic and monetary union

British Airways was one of the first companies to be able to trade
in the euro. Customers buying tickets in the Eurozone have been
offered the choice of fare quotation and payment in either local
currency or euro. The airline has been able to make payments

to suppliers in euro or local currency since January 1, 1999,
British Airways World Cargo has also offered customers in the
Eurgzone the choice of using either local currency or euro.

British Airways is currently managing the strategy for the withdrawal
of the legacy currencies and the introduction of euro notes and coins
in 2002. At the same time the airline is maintaining its corporate
readiness for UK entry should a decision to join be taken.

Outlook

Implementation of the fleet and network stratepy is progressing on
track; elimination of unprofitable capacity continues. As capacity
reductions are implemented over the next two years, cost control will
be a prime focus. New technology offers opportunities for operating
efficiencies and improved customer service,

Qur new Club World cabin (with flat bed) continues to increase
yields and win market share from competitors as it rolls out across
the network. Development of further product upgrades continue,
which, like the new World Traveller Plus cabin, will give our

employees new opportunities to demonstrate their outstanding
customer service skilis,

Our continued focus on impraving the fundamentals of the business
will help us ride out short-term issues relating to slower world
economic growth and the UK foot and mouth epidemic.
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Board members asa May 22, 2001

CHAIRMAN
Lord Marshall of Knightsbridge (67)
Board Member since 1983, Executive Chairman 1993-1996;

MNon-executive Chairman since 1996. Chairman of the Nominations
Committee.

Lord Marshall served as Chief Executive for 13 years. He is also
non-executive Chairman of Invensys plc, Deputy Chairman of
British Telecommunications ple, and a non-executive director of
HSBC Holdings plc. He is a crossbench member of the House of
Lords, allied to no political party.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Rederick Eddington (51)
Executive Board member since 2000.

Rod Eddington joined the airline as Chief Executive in May 2000.

He is a non-executive director of News Corperation and of John Swire
& Son Pty Limited. He serves as a director of Qantas Airways Ltd

{as nominee for British Airways).

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Derek Stevens (62)
Executive Board member since 1989,

Derek Stevens joined the airline as Chief Financial Officer in 1989,
He serves as Chairman of the Trustees of the Airways Pension Scheme
and the New Airways Pension Scheme and is a non-executive director

of CGNU plc. Derek Stevens will retire as a director of British Airways
on August 31, 2001.

DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMER SERVICE AND OPERATIONS
Mike Street (53)

Executive Board member since December 2000.

Mike Street has been Director of Customer Service and Operations
since 1997. He is a Trustee of the two British Airways pension
schemes and sits on the Council of Buckinghamshire Chiltern
University College.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Captain Colin Barnes {(67)

MNon-executive director since 1991, Chairman of the Safety
Review Committee,

Colin Barnes retired from British Airways as Chief Pilot and Director
of Flight Crew in 1991, He is a Governor Emeritus of the Flight
Safety Foundation and is a Member of the Council and Policy

Committee of the Air League. Colin Barnes will retire as a director
on September 30, 2001.

Martin Broughton (54)
Non-executive director since May 2000, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and senior independent non-executive director, Safety

Review and Nominations Committees. Martin Broughton is Chairman
of British American Tobacco p.l.c.

Michael Davies {66)

Non-executive director since 1983, Audit, Remuneration and
Nominations Committees.

Michael Davies is Chairman of Simon Group PLC, National Express
Group PLC and Corporate Services Group plc.
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Dr Ashok Ganguly {65)

Non-executive director since 1996. Audit and Safety
Review Committees.

A Fellow of the Roval Society of Chemistry, Ashok Ganguly is
Chairman of ICl india Ltd, and a director of ICICI, Technology Network
(India) Ltd, ICICl Knowledge Park Ltd, Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd,
Sedgwick Parekh Health Management Ltd and Wipro Corporation.
Director and non-executive chairman of (CICI West Bengal
Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd and non-executive
director of Central Board of Directors of Reserve Bank of India.

Baroness O'Cathain (63)
Non-executive director since 1993. Audit, Remuneration,
Nominations and Safety Review Committees.

Detta O'Cathain is also a non-executive director of Thistle Hotels
PLC, BNP Paribas UK Holdings Ltd, South East Water plc, William
Baird plc and Allders plc.

Dr Martin Read (51)
Non-executive director since May 2000. Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

Martin Read is Managing Director and Chief Executive of Logica plc
and a non-executive director of The Boots Company PLC.

Lord Renwick of Clifton (63}
Non-executive director since 1996. Safety Review Committee.

A former career diplomat, Robin Renwick is Chairman of Fluor
Daniel Ltd and Vice Chairman Investment Banking JP Morgan. He is
also a non-executive director of Compagnie Financiere Richemont

AG, Fluor Corporation, Harmony Gold, Billiton plc and South
African Breweries Flc.

The Hon Raymond Seitz (60)
Non-executive director since 1995, Safety Review Committee.

A former US Ambassador to the Court of St James, Ray Seitz is Vice-
Chairman of Lehman Brothers International, and a non-executive
director of The Chubb Cerporation, Authoriszor Inc., Marconi plc,
Cable and Wireless plc, The Telegraph Group plc and Rio Tinto plc.

COMPANY SECRETARY Alan Buchanan

PRESIDENT EMERITUS
The Rt Hon The Lord King of Wartnaby (33)

Lord King was Chairman of British Airways for 12 years from 1981,
and served as President from 1993 to 1997.

LEADERSHIP TEAM
Rod Eddington {51) Chief Executive

Derek Stevens (62) Chief Financial Officer, retires on August 31,
2001, to be succeeded by John Rishton

Mike Street (53) Director of Customer Service and Operations
Martin George (39) Director of Marketing and Communications

Mike Jeffrey (56) Director of Flight Operations, retires on June 30,
2001, to be succeeded by Lloyd Cromwell Griffiths

Colin Matthews (45} Diractor of Technical Operations

Roger Maynard (58) Director of Investments & Joint Ventures
Dale Moss (52) Director of Sales Worldwide

David Spurlock (33) Director of Strategy

Mervyn Walker {42) Director for People

Robert Webb QC (52) General Counsel




Directors' report

The directors present their Report and Accounts for the
year ended March 31, 2001. The accounts are set out

on pages 24 to 53.

Principal activities

The main activities of British Airways Plc and its subsidiary
undertakings are the operation of international and domestic
scheduled and charter air services for the carriage of passengers,
freight and mail and the provision of ancillary services.

Results for the year

Profit for the vear attributable 1o members of British Airways Plc
amounted to £114 million, against a loss of £21 miilion in the
pravious year. The Board recommends a final dividend of 12.8p

per share. An interim dividend of 5.1p per share was paid in January
making a total of 17.9p per share, the same as last year. After
providing £193 million for dividends, the retained loss for the year
amounted to £79 million.

Directors
The names and details of the directors are set out on page 14.

During the year to March 31, 2001 there were five changes to the
membership of the Board. Rod Eddington, Martin Broughton and
Martin Read 21l joined the Board on May 12, 2000, Sir Michael
Angus retired at the annual general meeting on July 11, 2000

and Mike Street joined the Board on December 8, 2000.

Derek Stevens and The Honorable Raymond Seitz retire and seek
re-election in accordance with the company’s Articles of Association
at the annua) general meeting 10 be held on July 17, 2001, On May
14, 2001 the company announced that Derek Stevens will retire

on August 31, 2001, Derek Stevens has a service contyact with the
company. In accordance with Article 93, Mike Street is required to
seek re-election, Biographical notes about the directors seeking
re-clection are set out on page 14 and in the explanatory notes of
the notice of annual general meeting.

Directors’ membership of Board Committees appears on page 14,
Details of the directors’ remuneration and share interests are set
out in the Remuneration Report on pages 19 to 22.

Employee involvernent

The motivation and commitment of employees is key to the success
of British Airways.

Employee ownership in the company is encouraged. As at May
2001, some 56 per cent of employees owned 2.6 per cent of the
company's shares. In May 2001 the 1998 Shareshave Scheme
matyred. The scheme currently in place was launched in February
2000 which attracted over 36,000 applications from employees
in 73 countries. Participants are saving, and will have the
opportunity to acquire shares in 2003 at the predetermined
option price of £2.38.

The company obtained shareholder approval at the annual general
meeting held in July 2000 to operate any aspect of the new all
employee share plans, These plans are currently being evaluated

by the company. They include a new partnership share plan which
allows employees in the UK to buy shares from their pre-tax salary.
Companies can also give matching shares to those participating in a
partnership share plan and have the discretion to grant free shares.
Financial limits apply to all these new plans.
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Directors’ report
Continued

‘Bravo!’, our enhanced company-wide recognition programme
continues to prosper. The programme operates in the UK and
overseas and provides people managers with a fast and simple way
to recognise and reward their staff, whether for doing a good job
day-to-day or for making an outstanding effort.

In March 2000 British Airways ran the second company-wide
employee opinion survey. The response rate was slightly lower than
the previous year with 25,000 replies world-wide. The resuits were

communicated across the business and action plans put in place
at all levels.

Equal opportunity

British Airways' policy is to promote equal opportunity in all areas
of employment. The airline recognises the importance of awareness
around this subject and consequently has made a training workshop
on equal opportunities mandatory for all people managers. This will
mean that over 5,000 people will attend this course over a period of
18 months. During the year 2000 equal opportunities action plans
were drawn up for the company as a whole and for each department
reflecting the key areas for improvement. Each department now

has a senior manager whose role it is to champion diversity in
British Airways and monitor progress against the given action plans.
British Airways is also an active member of the Employers’ forum
on Disability and pursues initiatives to raise awareness of the needs
of disabled employees and potential employees. In addition, the
company works with Qpportunity Now on gender issues and with
the Commission for Racial Equality on ethnic issues.

Community and Environment
One of the company’s five key values is to be a "Good Neighbour”
showing concern for the environment and the community. This is

supported by strong policies, underpinning a revised code of business
conduct which was introduced in 2000.

This year British Airways became the first major airline to endorse
the Global Sullivan Principles for Corporate Social Responsibility.
The principles which include support of universal human rights,
sustzinable development and equal opportunity, largely reflect the
terms of our newly revised code of business conduct. Critically, our
endorsement of the Global Sullivan Principles offers a measure of
public transparency and an opportunity for our company to fearn
from industry peers who aiso seek to conduct their business
operations in a responsible manner.

Last year saw the merger of the Community and Environment groups
to form the Sustainable Business Unit, charged with implementing
community and environmental policy through provision of support
and advice, as well as monitoring, measuring, and reporting across
the areas of social and environmental performance. The first
combined Annual Social and Environmental Report was published

in July 2000. The next report will be published in July 2001.

British Airways direct charitable donations for the year to March 31,
2001 were £782,000 (2000 - £807,000). The company's investment
in the community is much greater when benefits in kind are included.
Business in the Community reported our total contributions last

year at £6.4 million, our forecast for the year to March 3t, 2001
is £4.8 million.

British Airways carries out a wide range of Community and
Environment programmes. The Board approved community priorities
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are youth development, heritage and tourism, and the environment.
Over 1,000 trave! awards were made during the year to groups and
individuals working in these areas, One example is the British Airways
Assisting Conservation programme which works with leading
conservation organisations to promote work aimed at the protection
of threatened species, and other aspects of environmental
management. The airline’s Tourism for Tomorrow Awards, now in
their 10th year, recognised tourism projects that serve as a role
model for sustainable tourism. Over the years more than 1,000
entries have been received from more than 40 countries.

More than 10,000 students, largely from local schools but also
including groups such as women returning to work, have now passed
through the British Airways Community Learning Centre, located in
the Waterside parkland at our London business centre, which opened
in October 1999. Within the centre students are taught key skills
such as information technology, languages, customer service, and
about the environment. The success of the centre depends on
partnership with local schools and their teachers, and with the
Hayes/‘West Drayton educational authorities,

Encouragement is given to staff to become involved in community
work. A payroll giving scheme is run for our 50,000 UK staff and
£532,000 was given to a range of charities (2000; £402,203). A
Cheques for Charity scheme recognises the way many employees

help local communities. Some £120,000, including £20,000 recovered

from waste recycling activities, was distributed to charities supported
by 365 employees.

Some of our remarkable employees have set up independent
charities to bring much needed services 1o deprived and distressed
communities around the world. These include Nyumbani, caring for
HIV positive children outside Nairobi; Children of Mukuru for some
of Kenya's street children; Dreamflight, which each year since

1986 has taken incurably ill and disabled children to Disneyworld
in Florida; the BA Runners, through which BA staff interact with
children around the world while delivering aid; Sreepur Children’s
Village in Bangladesh, caring for more than 600 destitute children;
Nyanyano Educational Centre in Ghana providing education for
some 500 children; and Happy Child providing holidays and trips
for deprived and handicapped children in the United Kingdom.

Through our customers we continue to support the Change for
Good partnership with LUINICEF. Our thanks goes to all our
passengers for the £12.5 million which has now been generated
for projects providing children with basic health education and
welfare in developing countries. The programme is supported
by sorne 800 champions from cabin crew.

The environmental programme inciudes site audits and reviews of
specific topics within key areas of noise, fuel efficiency and emissions
to the atmosphere, waste, materials and water, congestion in the

air, and tourism and conservation. The airline has responded to
concern over climate change by adopting a 30 per cent target for
improvement in fuel efficiency over 20 years. We continue to be
involved in the work of the International Civil Aviation Organisation
(ICAO]) and other relevant groups and to be part of relevant research
programmes, During the year we hosted 2z visit from the German
national laboratory, DLR, developing ways to characterise aircraft
engine exhaust emissions, The airline has supported the work of

the UK Emissions Trading Group and a study by the Institute of
Public Policy Research on market options for control of emissions.
British Airways is sporisoring work and leading a multi stakeholder
group aiming to understand better the role of emissions from airport
activities in air quality in West London,

The airline has now one of the quietest and most fuel efficient fleets
in the world. British Airways supported the proposal for the new
"Chapter 4” noise standard which will be presented to the Assembly
of the ICAQ for adoption in September of this year. The airline has




taken a leading part in developing a code of practice, again involving
a range of stakeholders, for procedures to minimise approach noise
[Continuous Descent Approach). ‘We have taken other voluntary
measures including a voluntary ban on scheduled departures at
Heathrow and Gatwick after 23:30 to reduce our noise impact.
Through the purchase of new aircraft, management of schedules
and attention to operational procedures, the overall number of
noise infringemants at Heathrow and Gatwick has fallen over the
last year by 15 per cent.

The airline has received a number of awards for its environmental
and community programmes. In March, 2001, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, recognised our long-term leadership
in environmental reporting with a special award for continued
excellence. We were one of two British companies recognised in the
WorldAware awards for our range of community programmes with
special recognition of British Airways Assisting Conservation.

The company is supportive of the recent initiative by the UK
Government to reduce injuries in the workplace. In support of this,
the Social and Environmental Report to be published in July 2001

will contain appropriate disclosure on the group’s Health and Safety
at Work record,

Since 1992, the airline has published an Annual Environmental
Report. Copies of the 2000-01 report and information on other
programmes can be obtained from Sustainable Business Winit,
British Airways Plc, Waterside (HBBG), PO Box 365,
Harmondsworth, LUB7 0GB, UK and are available on the internet
at www.britishairways.com/responsibility.

Political donations
No donations were made to political parties during the vear (2000: nil].

Corporate governance

The company has complied throughout the year with the code of
best practice set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code appended
to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority,

The Board of British Airways Pic meets ten times a year and
additionally when necessary to consider all matters relating to the
overall control, business performance and sirategy of the company
and for these purposes the Board has drawn up a schedule of matters
reserved for Board decision. In recognition of the international nature
of the airline business, the Board holds at least three of its meetings
each year at important destinations on British Airways’ route network.

The Board is led by the Chairman and the executive management
of the company is led by Rod Eddington, the Chief Executive. The
Board has twelve members: three are executive directors and nine
non-executive directors. Of the nine non-executive directors, the
Chairman and Captain Colin Barnes were formerly executives of
the company. The other seven are fully independent non-executive
directors drawn from a diversity of business and diplomatic
backgrounds, bringing a broad range of views and experiences to
Board deliberations, Martin Broughton is the senior independent
non-executive director on the Board.

All directors receive a reguiar supply of information about the company
5o that they are equipped to play as full a part as possible in Board
meetings. All Board members have access to the Company Secretary
for any further information they require. Non-executive directors are
encouraged to visit the company’s operations and to speak to
customers and employees whenever they fly, All directors are required
to submit themselves for re-election every three years. Independent
professional advice would be available to directors in appropriate
circumstances, at the company’s expense. New directors are appointed
to the Board on the recommendation of the Nominations Committee
whose terms of reference are described opposite.

The Board has four standing Board Committees which meet regularly
under terms of reference set by the Board:

The Audit Committee meets quarterly under the chairmanship of
the non-executive director, Martin Broughton. As at May 22, 2001,
its other members are Michael Davies, Ashok Ganguly and
Baroness O'Cathain all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. The external and internal auditors, the General Counsel
and the Company Secretary attend all meetings of the Committee
and have rights of access to the Committee, Executives attend

as required. The Committee reviews the company's financial
statements to ensure that its financial reporting presents a balanced
and understandable assessment of the company's position and
prospects. It also reviews the company's system of internal control,
accounting policies, internal audit reports, compliance procedures
including the Turnbull Guidance and the company’s Code of
Business Conduct.

The Safety Review Committee meets at least five times per year
under the chairmanship of Colin Barnes, a former Chief Pilot of the
airfine. its members are Ashok Ganguly, Baroness O Cathain, Lord
Renwick, The Hon. Raymond Seitz and Martin Brotughton. The
Committee considers matters relating to the operational safety and

security of the airline and subsidiary airlines as well as health and
safety issues,

The Nominations Commitiee meets once a year and additionally
if required to consider the balance of the Board’s membership, to
identify any additional skills or experience which might benefit the
Board's performance and to interview candidates and recommend
appointments to the Board. The Committee also reviews the
performance of any director seeking re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Its Chairman is Lord Marshall and, as at
May 22, 2001, its other members are Michael Davies, Baroness
O'Cathain and Martin Broughton. Mo member of the Committee
participates in any discussion of his or her own performance.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board meets at least

once a year to determine the company's policy on exacutive
directors' remuneration and remuneration for senior executives
below Board level, to review that remuneration, to consider

and decide grants under the company’s fong term incentive and
share option plans. The Committee is chaired by Martin Read, an
independent non-executive directar and its other members, as at
May 22, 2001, are Michael Davies and Baroness O'Cathain who
are also independent non-executive directors. No direcior is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The ¢company maintains regular contact with its larger institutional
sharehoiders through its investor relations team and through
meetings with the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer.
Private shareholders receive the British Airways Investor magazine
twice annually and are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting and to express their views by completing and returning

2 freepost ‘Issue of Concern’ card, the main themes of which are

reported to the Board and responded to in the Chairman’s address
at the annual general meeting.

In order to protect the operating rights of the company, the number
of ordinary shares held by the non-UK nationals is monitored. At
March 31, 2001, 43 per cent of the ordinary shares of the company
were held by non-UK nationals {2000: 43 per cent). Having regard
to all relevant factors including the fact that there are no large
interests of single or associated non-UK nationals and, in the
absence of unforeseen developments, the directors do not expect
[but without limiting their freedom to act) to seek to exercise their
powers to restrict non-UK share ownership. Shareholders are being
asked at the annual general meeting to approve changes to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association.
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Directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the company’s system of internal
control, including internal financial control, which is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding:

(a) the safeguarding of assets against unautharised use or disposition,
and

(b) the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for publication.

in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control, the
Board have taken account of the results of all the work carried out
to audit and review the activities of the group.

There is an on-going process to identify, assess and manage risk.
This process has been in place throughout the year to which these
statements apply and up to the date of their approval.

As part of its continuing drive to embed internal control into

its business processes, the company has an established Risk and
Opportunity Management Group with specific accountability for
reviewing the system of risk management and for reporting key risks
and their associated mitigating factors to the Board. These include
economic, pelitical and regulatory, rechnical and operational and
financial and business risks. For example, the group has recently
reviewed risks to the business in relation to liquidity and financing,
fuel and information technology.

All necessary measures have been taken to ensure that Internal
Control: Guidance for Birectors on the Combined Code published
in September 1999 was fully complied with in the accounting period

which ended on March 31, 2001 and have remained in place to the
date hereof.

For the accounting period ending on March 31, 2001, the key
procedures that the directors established to provide effective internal
controls were as follows:

The company reissued its Code of Business Conduct in 2000
which conveys ethical values and establishes the norms of business
behaviour throughout the company. Its statement of mission, values
and goals is currently under review.

A clear organisational structure exists detailing lines of authority and
control responsibilities. The professionalism and competence of staff
is maintained both through rigorous recruitment policies and a
performance appraisal system which establishes targets, accourtability,
control consciousness and identifies appropriate training requirements.
Action plans are consequently prepared and implemented to ensure
that staff obtain the required skills to fulfil their responsibilities, and
that the company can meet its future management requirements.

A four-year business plan sets the business agenda. For the first two
years it includes detailed departmental performance projections and
high level figures for a further two years. The plan is the operational
and financial evaluation of the corporate strategy, setting out the
agreed targets for financial return and service standards, identifying
and prioritising improvement opportunities to deliver those targets
and the agreed capital and manpower requirements.

The business planning process confirms that the targeted results
can be achieved, satisfies departments that their plans are robust
and establishes performance indicators against which departments
can be evaluated. The business plan is approved by the Board on
an annual basis.

A comprehensive management accounting system is in place
providing financial and operational performance measure indicators
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1o executive management. Detailed management accounts are
prepared to cover each major area of the business. Variances from
the business plan are analysed, explained and acted on in a timely
manner. As well as regular Board discussions, monthly meetings are
hetd by the 1_eadership Team to discuss performance with specific
projects being discussed as and when required.

Information systems are developed to support the company’s long term
objectives and are managed by a professionally staffed Information
Management department. Appropriate policies and procedures are in
place covering all significant areas of the business. These detail lower
level controls including authorisation and approval processes,

Business controls are reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Internal
Audit department which operates internationally and 10 a programme
based on risk assessment. The department is managed by
professionally qualified personnel with experience gained from both
inside and outside the industry. The department also ensures that
recommendations made by both internal and external auditors to
improve controls are followed up by management. The Audit
Committee, comprising four independent non-executive directors,
considers significant control matters raised by management and both
the internal and external auditors and reports its findings to the Board.

The directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the company’s
internal control system considering the processes set out above and

make this statement pursuant to the guidance for directors issued
in September 1999,

ConR

After making enguiries, the directors consider that the company has
adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.
For this reason, the going concern basis has been adopted in
preparing the accounts.

Py ey

British Airways is a signatory to the Confederation of British Industry
(CBi) code of practice on supplier payment and is committed to the
payment of its suppliers to agreed terms. Further information in
respect of this code can be obtained from the CBI at Centre Point,
103 New Oxford Street, London WC1A 1DUL

Specific actions included the establishment of an integrated
procurement and payment management system during 1997 with
effective suppher payment as one of its core objectives. The number
of days’ purchases in creditors as at March 31, 2001 in respect of
the company is calculated as 45 days (2000: 46 days). (Calculation
basis as defined by the Companies Act 1985).

Posi balance shret evons
On May 10, 2001 the Group’s offer for British Regional Air Lines
Group plc was declared unconditional,

On April 30, 2001 British Airways and Thomas Cook Holdings
Limited completed the merger of the outbound package tour
businesses from the UK, undertaken by British Airways Holidays
Limited and Thomas Cook Holdings Lirmited.

By order of the Board

Alan Buchanan o e —
Company Secretary

May 22, 2001




Remuneration report

Policy

The company’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation
packages at market rate which reward successful performance and
attract, retain and motivate senior executives. The remuneration
packages offered by the company are comparable with other
international businesses of similar size and nature to British Airways.

The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration

packages for the Chairman, Executive Directors and the Chief
Executive’s direct reports.

Remuneration package for executive directors

The remuneration package, which is determined by the Remuneration
Committee, consists of a basic salary, an annual bonus, participation
in a long term incentive plan and share option plan, The company
also provides private health care, a car and fuel.

Basic salary and benefits

The basic salary reflects the level of responsibility of the executive
director, his or her market value and individual performance. In
reviewing basic salary, independent external advice is taken on
salaries for comparable jobs in companies similar to British Airways.

Annual bonus

Executive directors participate in an annuat bonus scheme which is
designed to reward achievement of financial and non-financial targets
agreed by the Remuneration Committee and linked to the business
plan approved by the Board. Maximum bonus is capped at 50 per cent
of salary payable only if stretching targets are achieved.

Long term incentive plan

The British Airways Long Term Incentive Plan 1996 was first
approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting in July
1996 but more stringent performance criteria were adopted at the
annual general meeting on July 13, 1999.

The Plan permits the Remuneration Committee to make awards of
aptions over shares to the most senior group of executives conditional
upon the company's performance relative to other companies in the
FTSE-100Q index. Awards become unconditional as to one third on
the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the start of the financial
year in which the award was made if the company’s ranking by total
shareholder return {TSR) places it at the median percentile or above.
No award will be made for below median performance and maximum
awards will only be achieved at the 9Gth percentile. All awards are
subject to the Remuneration Committee being satisfied that the
company’s overall financial performance justifies the grant of

the option.

Rod Eddington and Mike Street received conditional awards under

the Plan during the year under review, details of which may be found
on page 22.

British Airways Share Option Plan 1999

The Plan enables the Remuneration Commitiee to grant options to
acquire ordinary shares in the company or British Airways’ American
Depositary Shares (ADS) at an option price in sterling or (in the case
of ADSs) in US dollars which is not less than the market vaiue of the
shares on the date of grant and, where shares are to be subscribed,
their nominal value (if greater). An individual's participation is limited

so that the option prices payable for options granted in any one year
will not exceed basic salary.

It is not, however, subject to any limit on the value of options
outstanding, in order to discourage early exercise of options and
sale of shares. Exercise of options is subject to a performance
condition the aim of which is to link the exercise of options to
sustained improvements in the underlying financial performance of
the company. The performance condition currently in use requires
the Remuneration Commitiee to be satisfied that there has been
an increase in the earnings per share of the company which is at
least 4 per cent per annum more than the increase in the retail

prices index during any period of three consecutive financial years
within the life of the grant.

Rod Eddington and Mike Street received awards under the Plan

during the year under review, details of which may be found on
page 21.

Service contracts

Derek Stevens will retire on August 31, 2001, As from May 1,
2001, Rod Eddington’s contract period reduced to one year.
Mike Street’s contract has a one year notice period. In the event
of new appointments, the length of service contract would be
determined by the Committee in the light of the then prevailing
market practice and the Committee acknowledges that the trend

is towards contract periods which reduce to one year after an
initial period.

Mon-executive directorships

The Board encourages executive directors to broaden their
experience outside the company. Accordingly they are permitted
to take up a limited number of non-executive appointments from
which they may keep any fee.

Pension schemes

Executive directors participate in the New Airways Pension
Scheme which is the main contributory pension scheme open

to employees of the company. Under Derek Stevens' service
contract, pensionable remuneration included any annual bonus
paid, as this was the prevailing practice for senior executives in
the company when he joined, The Committee does not propose
to change these arrangements for Derek Stevens since these are
contractual rights. Annual bonuses are not part of Rod Eddington’s
or Mike Street’s pensionable pay and future appointments of
executive directors will not include the annual bonus for
pensionable purposes. Provision for payment of a widow's
pension on death and life insurance providing payment of a
lump sum for death in service is also made.

Non-executive directors’ fees

The Chairman’s fee is determined by the Remuneration
Committee. Fees for the non-executive directors (other than
the Chairman) are determined by the executive directors on the
recommendation of the Chairman and were reviewed in April
2001 having remained unchanged for the last three years. They
will be reviewed again in two years time. Neither the Chairman
nor the non-executive directors participate in the long term
incentive plan nor the share option plan. Their fees are not
pensionable. Lord Marshall and Captain Barnes, being former
executives of the company, are in receipt of pensions under the
New Airways Pension Scheme and the Airways Pension
Scheme respectively.
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Directors’ remuneration and share interests

The remuneration of the executive directors was:

Compensation
Basic Salary Bonus Taxabte benefits for loss of office Total
£000 2001* 2000 2001** 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
Rod Eddington 458 185 108 751
Derek Stevens 292 282 108 10 10 410 292
Mike Street™** 89 33 5 127
Robert Ayling 500 1 1930 2,491
* or from date of appointment.
** a further amount not exceeding 5 per cent of salary could be earned if the outstanding element of the bonus criteria is satisfied.
*** figures shown are pro-ration of annual amounts.
Taxable benefits include a company car, fuel and private health insurance and, in respect of Rod Eddington, relocation expenses.
Pensions
Annual pension Transfer value
Age as at earned during Total deferred of increase in
March 31, 2001 2000-01% annual Pension accrued benefit
Rod Eddington 51 15,231 £15,231 as at March 31, 2001 165,000
Derek Stevens 62 9,839 £234,080 as at March 31, 2001 141,000
Mike Street 53 4130w £179,586 as at March 31, 2001 2,000
The fees paid to non-executive directors were:
£'000 2001 2000
Lord Marshall 250 250
Captain Colin Barnes 43 41
Michael Davies 27 28
Dr Ashok Ganguly 39 27
Baroness O'Cathain 31 33
Lord Renwick 28 26
The Hon Raymond Seitz 27 26
Martin Broughton t
Dr Martin Read 20
Sir Michael Angus 19 75

* or from date of appointment

Lord Marshall’s fee as non~executive Chairman was £250,000 per annum in addition to which he enjoyed taxable benefits of £14,200,
Lord Marshall waived fees of £25,000 in respect of the period during the year in which he served as acting Chief Executive.

The fees paid to nen-executive directors comprised for the year under review a basic £22,500 per annum plus £500 for each Board or Committee

separately attended. In addition, Captain Celin Barnes receives £15,000 per annum for his chairmanship of the Safety Review Committee, and taxable
benefits of £15,080.

T Fees of £22,910 were paid to Martin Broughton's employer in respect of his services as a non-executive director of British Airways Plc.
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Directors' share interests at March 31, 2001

British Airways Plc

British Afrways Capital Limited

Qrdinary shares

Ordinary shares

Convertible

subject to no restrictions subject to restrictions Capital Bonds

March 31, 2001

April 1, 2000 March 31, 2001 April 1, 20005 March 31, 2001 April 1, 2000
Lord Marshall 69,225 69,225 11,304 11,304
| Rod Eddingion
! Derek Stevens 342,228 197,872 491 i,664 109 109
Mike Street 6,206 6,206 472 472
Captain Colin Barnes 22,315 22,315 &44 644
Michael Davies 5,224 5,224 2221 2221
Dr Ashok Ganguly 104 104
Baroness O'Cathain 6,000 6,000
Lord Renwick 6,514 5514
The Hon Raymond Seitz 1,506 1,506
Martin Broughton _ 8,372 4,772
Dr Martin Read 7,539 463
475,233 319,201 963 2,136 14,278 14,278

* or as at date of appointment

No director has any beneficial interest in any subsidiary undertaking of the company other than those shown above in the 9.75 per cent Convertible Capital
Bonds 2005 of British Airways Capital Limited.

Oun April 4, 2001 Martin Broughton acquired 72 shares in respect of an [SA reinvestment.

Directors’ share options at March 31, 2001

The following directors held options to purchase ordinary shares of British Airways Plc granted under the British Airways Executive Share Option Scheme
1987 and the British Airways Share Option Plan 1999:

Number of Onption Options* Exercisable for
Date of grant options price exercised  seven years from
Lord Marshall June 9, 1993 81,911 293p June 9, 1996
July 1, 1994 12,903 372p Juby 1, 1997
Aug 11, 1994 95,465 4i19p Aug 11, 1997
Balance at April 1, 2000 and March 31, 2001 190,279
Rod Eddington May 26, 2000 138,888 360p May 26, 2003
Balance at March 31, 2001 138,888
Derek Stevens June 1, 1990 143,183 196p 143,183 June t, 1993
June 16, 1992 46,022 261p June 16, 1995
June 9, 1993 13,651 293p June 9, 1996
fjuly 1, 1994 5,645 372p juty 1, 1997
June 30, 1995 7.654 405p June 30, 1998
Aug 26, 1999 71,573 3%4p Aug 26, 2002
Balance at April 1, 2000 287,728
May 31, 2000 {143,133) 143,133
Balance at March 31, 2001 144,545
Mike Street Aug 26, 1999 79,517 394p Aug 26, 2002
June 28, 2000 75,605 380p June 28, 2003
Balance at March 31, 2001 155,122

* ‘The share price on the date of exercise was 362p. Had Derek Stevens disposed of the sharas, his gain would have been £237,684.

Derek Stevens and Mike Street also hold 559 options at 418p and 814 options at 238p under the 1998 and 2000 operations of the British Airways Savings
Related Share Option Scheme 1996, exercisable for a six month period from May 1, 2001 and June 1, 2003 respectively.
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Directors’ remuneration and share interests cominiumi

e

The following directors held conditional awards of options over ordinary shares of British Airways Plc granted under the British Airways Long Term
Incentive Plan.

MNurnber of

Date of Grant Options

Rod Eddington June 5, 2000 103,022
Derek Stevens Aug 2, 1996 11,225
June 13, 1997 18,171

June 12, 1998 30,882

July 2, 199¢ 46,484

Mike Street Aug 2, 1996 7.523
June 13, 1997 12,230

June 12, 1998 31,108

July 2, 1995 46,693

June 5, 2000 59,196

On April 1, 2001 a third of each of the conditional awards made on August 2,1996, June 13, 1997 and June 12, 1998 lapsed as the performance condition
was not met in the respective financial years 1997 to 2001,

In refation to awards made in 1996, 1997 and 1998, one third of each individual award may vest at the end of the third, fourth and fifth financial years from
the year of the grant if the performance of the company, measured by total shareholder return {TSR) from the year of the grant through to the end of the
year in question, places the company at or abave the 75th percentile when compared with the TSR for each of the companies in the FTSE-100 index. If the
company’s TSR for the period to that financial year end is at or below the 40th percentile, no options will be granted. If the company's TSR for that period
is between the 41st and 74th percentiles, the numnber of options will be determined pro-rata on a straight line basis,

In relation to awards made fram 1999 onwards, one third of each individual award may vest at the end of the third, fourth and fifth financial years from the
year of the grant if the performance of the company, measured by total shareholder return (TSR} from the year of the grant through to the end of the year
in question, places the company at or above the median percentile when compared with the TSR for each of the companies in the FTSE-100 index. If the
company's TSR for the period to that financial year end is at or below the 50th percentile, no options will be granted. If the company’s TSR for that period
is between the 50th and 90th percentiles, the number of options will be determined pro-rata on a straight line basis,

No payment 15 due upon exercise of options. Options are exercisable for seven years from vesting.

All grants of options are subject to the Remuneration Committee being satisfied that the company’s overall financial performance justifies the grant of an option.

Closing prices of the ordinary shares

2001 2000
At March 31 3t5p 324.5p
Highest in the year 463p 553.5p
Lowest in the year 265p 261.5p

©On behalf of the Board
Dr Martin Read

Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Remuneration Committee
May 22, 2001
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Statement of dlrectors responSIbllltles

in relation to the accounts

Company law requires the directors to prepare accounts for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the group and of the profit and loss of the group

for that period. In preparing those accounts, the directors are
required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the accounts.

Report of the auditors to the

of British Airways Plc

We have audited the accounts on pages 24 to 53 which have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of certain fixed assets and the accounting policies set
out on pages 29 to 31,

¢ sgcingibifithes of dhracioes and i

The d|rectors are responsible for preparing the annual report.

As described above, this includes responsibility for preparing the
accounts in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
accounting standards. Our responsibilities, as independent auditors,
are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing
Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority
and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounts give a true
and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
directors’ report is not consistent with the accounts, if the company
has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if the
information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding directors’
remuneration and tramsactions with the company is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement on pages 17
and 18 reflects the company's compliance with the seven provisions
of the Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules,
and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether

the board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls,

or form an opinion on the effectiveness of either the company's
corporate governance pracedures or its risk and control procedures.,

We read the other information contained in the Annual Repont,
including the corporate governance statement, and consider whether
it is consistent with the audited accounts. We consider the

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the group and to enable them to ensure that the accounts
comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

members

implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the accounts.

We conducted our audlt in accordance with Auditing Standards
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit inciudes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in
the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the group's circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

‘We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain alt the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the accounts are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the accounts.

LAY

Iy our gpinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and of the group at March 31, 2001 and
of the profit of the group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Ernst & Young A//ﬂka [’ 7 wj

Registerad Auditor
London
May 22, 2001
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Group profit and loss account
For the year ended March 31, 2001

Group
£ million Note 2001 2008
Turnover 2z 9,278 8,940
Cost of sales 4 (8,711) (8679)
Gross profit 567 261
Administrative expenses 4 (187} {177}
Operating profit 380 84
Share of operating profit in associates 7 64 75
Total operating profit including associates 444 159
Other income and charges 8 1 5
(Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets and investments 9 (69 249
Net interest payable 0 (226} (408}
Profit before tax 150 5
Tax 11 22) (15}
Profit/(loss) after cax 128 (1a)
Equity minority interest {2}
Non equity minority interest 37 an {1t}
Profit/(loss} for the year 114 (21)
Dividends paid and proposed 12 {193) {195}
Retained loss for the year 36 {79} (216}
Earnings per share 13
Basic earnings per share 10.6p (2.00p
Diluted earnings per share 10.5p n/a
Dividends per share 12 17.9p 17.9p
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Balance sheets
At March 31, 20071

Grorus Corpary
¢ milen Nt 2801 2008 201 2008
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 14 60 62
Tangible assets 15
Fleet 8,865 8,437 8,817 8342
Property 1,418 1488 1,342 410
Equipment 483 369 370 245
10,766 10,294 10,529 9997
Investments 18
Subsidiary undertokings and quosi-subsidiary 1393 1,391
Associared undertakings 381 507 14 2
Trade investments 20 35 19 34
Investment in own shares 25 25 25 25
426 567 1,451 1,452
11,252 10.923 11,980 11,449
Current assets
Stocks 2 | 66 78 47 51
Debtors 25 I‘ 1,444 1.368 1,243 1203
Short-term foans and deposits 26¢ | 865 1043 808 969 |
Cash at bank and in hand 71 103 8 23 l
2,446 2.592 2,106 2246
Creditors; amounts falling due within one year 27 (3.308) (3.366) {3.957) {3.892)
Net current liabilities (862) (774} (1.851) {1,646}
Toral assets less current liabilicies 10,390 10,149 10,129 9,803
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings and other creditors 28 E (6,788) {6,615) {6.963) (6,719} ]
Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 31 L (113} (113)
(6,901) (6,728] (6,963) (6719)
Provisions for liabiliries and charges 32 {70} {81} (69) (79)
3419 3340 3,097 3005
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 34 271 270 271 270
Reserves 36
Shore premium account l 788 785 788 785
Revolustion reserve 290 285 290 285
Profit and foss account ) L 1,866 1,807 1,748 1,665
2,944 2877 2,826 2,735
Toeal equicy shareholders’ funds 3,215 3,147 3,097 3005
Minority interest 18 16
Non equity minodty interest 37 186 177
3419 3340 3,097 3005

Rod Eddington Chigf Executive Qfficer Q .
Derek Stevens Chief Financiol Officer
May 22, 2001
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Group cash flow statement
For the year ended March 31, 2001

Group
£ miltion Note 2001 2060
Cash inflow from operating activities S5a 1,251 1,186
Dividends received from associates 33 44
Raturns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 83 85
Interest paid on bank and other toans (88) {93)
Interest paid on finance leases and hire purchase arrangements (326) {300)
Dividends received from trade investments 1 3
Non equity minority interest {12} {10}
Net cash outflow from returns an investments and servicing of finance (342} {315)
Tax
UK Corporation tax 18 25
Overseas tax 3) 27
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from taxation 15 (2}
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Tangible fixed assets purchased for cash 15 {1.115) (1.019)
Refund of progress payments 373 387
Sale of tangible fixed assets and investments 298 311
Purchase of trade investments (13} {3}
Investrment in own shares {14)
Sale of investment in Galileo International Inc, 192
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment 457} (146}
Acquisitions and disposals
Sale of interests in Participations Aéronautiques 19 25
Sale of interests in subsidiary undertakings 16
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings {39
Purchase of investment in lberia (161}
Purchase of interests in other associated undertakings (15) (18)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) for acquisitions and disposals 26 (218)
Equity dividends paid {194) {242)
Net cash inflow before management of liguid resources and financing 332 307
Management of liquid resources 159 9
Financing
Changes in borrowings
Bank ond other loans raised 214 60
Bank and other leans repaid [228) {202)
Capital efements of finance leases ond hire purchase orrangements repaid {510} {374}
(524) (518)
Issue of preferred securities 193
Changes in share capital
Issue of ordinary share capital and share premium recefved 3 4
Decrease in cash 26 30) (3
Group
£ million Note 2001 2000
Group financing requirement
Net cash inflow before management of liquid resources and financing 332 307
Acquisitions under loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements 15e (663) {659)
Total financing requirement for the year {331) (352)
Total tangible fixed asset expenditure, pet of progress payment refunds 1,405 1,291
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended March 31, 2001

Group
£ mitlion Mote 2001 2000
Profit/{loss) for the year 114 21
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year
Exchange and other movements 36a (30) 2o
Total gains and losses recognised since last annual report 84 {41)
Profit for the year relating to associated undertakings is shown in Note 22,
Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
For the year ended March 31, 2001
Group
£ million Note 2001 2000
Profit/{loss) for the year 114 (21)
Dividends 12 {193) {195)
Retained loss for the year {79) {216}
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year (3M (20)
Issue of ordinary share capttal, on the conversion of Convertible Capital Bonds,
and on the exercise of options under Employee Share Option Schemes
Share capital 1 2
Share premivum 3 21
4 23
Reduction in reserves resulting from shares issued to a Qualifying Empioyee Share Ownership
Trust in relation to the 1993 Share Save Scheme (2}
Goodwill transferred to the profit and loss account in respect of disposals 173 7
Net increase/{deductions) to shareholders’ funds 68 {208)
Equity shareholders’ funds ar April 1 3,147 3,355
Equity shareholders’ funds at March 31 3,215 3,147

The difference between reported and historical cost profits and losses is not material.
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Summary statements in euro

Included for information purposes only

Group profit and loss account
For the year ended March 31, 200t

Euro million 2001 2000
Turnover 15.013 14,887
Operating expenditure {14,398) {14,747}
Operating profit 615 140
Share of operating profit in associates 104 125
Total operating profit including associates 719 265
Other income and charges 2 8
{Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets and investments (112) 415
Net imerest payable {366} [679)
Profic before tax 243 g
Tax {(36) {25}
Profit/(loss) after tax 207 (16}
Equity minority interest i3)
Non equity minoerity interest {19 (18)
Profit/{loss) for the year 185 {34}
Dividends paid and proposed (312) {325)
Retained ioss for the vear {127 {359}
Group statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended March 31, 2001
Euro million 20Mm 2000
Profit/{loss) for the year 185 (34)
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year
Exchange ¢nd other movements {49) {33}
Tortal gains and losses recognised since last annual report 136 {67}
Group balance sheet
At March 31, 2001
Euro million 2001 2000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 97 103
Tangible assets 17420 17,142
Investments 639 944
18,206 18,189
Current assets 3,958 4316
Creditors: amounts failing due within one year {5.352) {5,605)
Net current liabilities (1,394) (1,289}
Total assets fess current liabilities 16,812 16900
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (11.166) (11,202}
Provisions for liabilities and charges 113) {135)
5,533 5563
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 439 450
Reserves 4,764 4,79¢
Minority interest 29 27
Non equity minority interest 30 295
5,533 5,563
Translation rate E=1.62 euro  £=1.67 euro

Eurd amounts have been included for information only and have been wransiated from sterting at the rate of exchange applying on March 31, 2001 and 2000,
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Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies
Accounting convention

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the inclusion of certain assets at valuation, as stated below, and in
accordance with all applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and the Companies Act 1985.

Basis of consolidation

The group accounis include the accounts of the company and its subsidiary undertakings, each made up to March 31, together with the attributable share
of results and reserves of associated undertakings, adjusted where appropriate to conform with British Airways accounting policies. The group's share of the
profits less losses of associated undertakings is included in the group profit and loss account and its share of the post-acquisition results of these companies
is included in interests in associated undertakings in the group balance sheet. Certain associated undertakings make up their annual audited accounts to

dates other than March 31, n the cases of Qantas and |beria, published results up o the year ended December 31 are included. For Qantas the results are
unaudited. In other cases, results disclosed by subsequent unaudited management accounts are included,

The attributable resulzs of those companies acquired or disposed of during the year are included for the periods of ownership. Where an entity, though not
fulfilling the lega! definition of a subsidiary or subsidiary undertaking, gives rise to benefits for the group that ase, in substance, no different than those that
would arise were that entity a sebsidiary or subsidiary undertaking, that entity is classified as a quasi-subsidiary. In determaning whether the group has the

ability t0 enjoy the benefits arising from such entities’ net assets, regard is given as to which party is exposed to the risks inherent in the benefits and which
party, in practice, carries substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

In accordance with section 230 of the Companies Act 1983, a separate profit and loss account dealing with the results of the company only is not presented.
Turnover

Passenger ticket and cargo waybill sales, net of discounts, are recorded as current liabilities in the 'sales in advance of carriage” account until recognised as
revenue when the transportation service is provided. Commission costs are recognised at the same time as the revenue to which they relate and are charged

w cost of sales. Lnused tickets are recognised as fevenue on a systematic basis. Qther revenue is recognised at the time the service is provided.
Segmental reporting

a Business segments

The ditectors regard all raterial group activities as relating (o the airline business.

b Gepgraphical seements
i} Turnover by destination: The analysis of turnover by destination is based on the foliowing criteria:
Scheduled and non-scheduled services: Turnover from domestic services within the United Kingdom is attributed to the United Kingdom.

Turnover from inbound and outbound services berween the United Kingdom and overseas points is attributed to the geographical area in which the
relevant overseas point lies.

Other revenue: Revenue from the sale of package holidays is attributed to the geographical area in which the holiday is taken, while revenue from aircraft
maintenance and other miscellaneous services is attributed on the basis of where the customer resides.

#) Turnover by origin: The analysis of wurnover by otigin is derived by allocating revenue 10 the area in which the sale was made, Operating profic vesulting

from turnover generated in each geographical area according to ofigin of sale is not disclosed as it is neither practical nor meaningful to altocate the
group’s operating expenditure on this basis.

iti) Ceographical analysis of net assets: The major revenue-garning asset of the group is the aircraft fleet, the majority of which are registered in the United

Kingdom, Since the group’s aircraft fleets are employed flexibly across its worldwide route network, there is no suitable basis of allocating such assets and
related Nabilities to geographical segments.

iv) The geographical analysis of turnover and operating profit for associates has not been disclosed as it would be prejudicial to the businesses of the associates.

Goodwill

Prior to March 31, 1998, goodwill was set off against reserves on the acquisition of a business, including an equity interest ins an associated undertaking,
Goodwill is released 1o the profit and loss account on disposal of the business to which it relates. From Aprid 1, 1998, where the cost of acquisition exceeds
the values artributed to such net assets, the resulting goodwill is capitalised and amortised over a period not exceeding 20 years.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are held at cost, subject to the property revaluations casried our at March 31, 1995, and the fleet revaluations carried out at March 31,
1988 which were retained in accordance with the transitionat provisions of FRS 15 - Tangible Fixed Assets. The group adopted a policy of not revaluing
tangible fixed assets in the fucure. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less estimared residual value, on a straight line basis.

a Capitalisation of interest on progress payments

Interest attributed to progress payments made on account of aircraft and other assets under construction is capitalised 2nd added to the cost of the asset

concerned. Interest capitatised in respect of progress payments on 1those aircraft which subsequently become subject to extendible operating lease
arrangements is carried forward and written off over the initial lease period.
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MNotes to the accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued

b Fleet

i} Cost or valuatior: All aircraft are stated at cost, net of manufacturers' credits, with the axception of a small number that are stated at March 31, 1988
vatuations, with subsequent expenditure stated at cost. The Concorde fleet remains at nil book value. Aircraft not in current use are included ar estimated
net realisable value,

ii) Depreciation: Fleet assets owned, or held on finance leases or hire purchase arrangements, are depreciated at rates calculated to write down the cost or
vajuation o the estimated residual value at the end of their planned operational tives. Cabin interior modifications, including those required for brand
changes and re-launches, are depreciated over the lower of 5 years and the remaining life of the aircraft, Residual values and operational lives are reviewed

annually.
¢ Propercty and equipment
Freehoid properties and certain feasehold properties, professionally valued at March 31, 1995, are included in these accounts on the basis of that valuation.
Subsequent additions are included at cost. Provision is made for the depreciation of all property and equipment, apart from freehold land, based upon
expected useful lives and, in the case of leasehold properties, over the duration of the leases, if shorter,
d Leased and hire purchcse assers

Where assets are financed through finance leases or hire purchase arrangements, under which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are

transferred to the group, the assets are treated as if they had been purchased outright. The amount included in the cost of tangibie fixed assets represents the
aggregate of the capital elements payable during the lease or hire purchase term. The correspending obligation, reduced by the appropriate proportion of lease
or hire purchase payments made, is included in creditors. The amount included in the cost of tangible fixed assets is depreciated on the basis described in the
preceding paragraphs and the interest element of lease or hire purchase payments made is included in interest payable in the profit and oss account. Payments
under all other lease arrangements, known as operating leases, are charged (o the profit and foss account in equal annual amounts over the period of the lease.
In respect of aircraft, operating lease arrangements atlow the group to terminate the feases after a limited initial period, normally 5 10 7 years, without further
material financial cbligations. In certain cases the group is entitled to extend the initial lease period on pre-determined terms: such feases are described as

extendible operating leases.
Aircraft and engine overhaul expenditure

Aircraft and engine spares acquired on the introduction or expansion of a fleet are carried as tangible fixed assets and generally depreciated in line with the

fleet to which they relate. Replacement spares and ail other costs relating to the maintenasnce and overhaul of aircraft and engines are charged to the profit
and loss account on consumpiion and as incurred respectively.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cash and liquid resources

Cash includes cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand with any qualifying financial institution, less overdrafts from any qualifying financial inseicution
repayable on demand. Liguid resources inciudes current asser investments held as readily disposable stores of vatue.

Pension and other post-retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are payable through separately funded United Kingdom pension schemes with equivalent arrangements for overseas territories,
Contributions to pension funds are made on the basis of independent actuarial advice and charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the cost
over the remaining service lives of the employees.

Provision is made based on actuanial advice for post-retitement medical benefits of employees in the United States.

Frequent flyer programmes

The group operates two principal frequent flyer programmes, The Airline scheme, 'Executive Club’, allows freguent travellers to accumulate 'BA Miles' mileage
credits which entitle them to a choice of various awards, including free travel. In addition, Airmiles Travel Promotions Limited selis ‘Airmiles’ to Linired
Kingdom companies to use for promotional incentives. The direct incremental cost of providing free redemption services, including British Airways flighes,

in exchange for redemption of miles earmed by members of the group's Executive Club and Airmiles schemes is accrued as rembers of these schemes

accumulate mileage. Costs accrued include incremental fuel, catering servicing costs and cost of redemptions on air and non-air pariners; these costs are
charged to cost of sales.

Deferred tax

Provisions are made for deferred rax, using the liability methed, on short-term timing differences and all other material timing differences o the extent that
it ts probable that the lizbilities will crystallise in the foreseeable furure.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency balances are translated into sterling at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date, except for certain loan repayment instalments which are

rranslated ar the forward contract rates where instalments have been covered forward at the balance sheert date. Aircraft which are financed in US dollars
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1 Accounting policies continued

either by loans, finance leases or hire purchase arrangements, are regarded together with the related assets and liabilities as a separate group of

assets and liabilities and accounced for in US dollars. The amounts in US dollars are translated into sterling at rates ritling at the balance sheet date and
the net differences arising from the translation of aircraft costs and refared US dollar foans are taken 1o reserves. Exchange differences arising on the translation
of net assets of overseas subsidiary undertakings and associated undertakings are taken 1o reserves. Profits and losses of such undertakings are ranslated into
steriing at average rases of exchange during the year. Al other profils or losses arising on translation are dealt with thiough the profit and loss account.

Derivatives and financial instruments
The group’s policies for using derivatives and financial instruments are explained in the Operating and Financial Review on page 13.

The group's accounting policy for derivatives is to defer and only recognise in the group profit and loss account gains and losses on hedges of revenues or
aperating payments as they crystalfise. Amounts payable or receivable in respect of interest rate swap agreements are recognised in the net inferest payable
charge over the period of the contracts on an accruals basis. Cross currency swap agreements and forward foreign exchange contracts taken out to hedge
borrowings are brought into account in establishing the carrying values of the relevant loans, leases or hire purchase arrangements in the balance sheet.
(iains or losses on forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge capital expendirure commitments are recognised as part of the total sterling carrving cost
of the relevant tangible asset as the contracts mature or are closed out. Short term debtors and creditors are held at fair vaiue and have therefore been
excluded from the financial inscrumment disclosures except note 24 on Currenrcy exposures.

2 Turnover
L rtdiion 2601 2000
Traffic revenue
Scheduled services — passenger 7.803 7,465
- freight and mail 579 556
8,382 8021
Noni-scheduied services 50 71
8,432 8092
Other revenve (including aircraft maintenance, package holidays and other airline services) 846 848
9,278 8940
3 Geographical analysis of turnover and operating profit
a  Turnover Lo
By arca of or:ginz! saie By ares of destinaron
£ yillon 008 200G 24001 2300
Europe 5,054 5898 3,388 3400
United Kingdom 4,632 4,062 815 719
Continental Europe 1,422 1,836 2,573 2681 !
The Americas 1,745 1,655 3,450 3253
Africa, Middle East and Indian sub-continent 783 687 1,304 1,220
Far Bast and Austratasia 6596 700 1,136 1,067
9,278 8,940 9,278 8,940

b Operating profit

Cargug

By wiea of degtinaticn

L omdllion 2001 200
Europe (172) {310}
The Americas 470 308
Africa, Middle East and Indian sub-cantingnt 92 62
Far East and Australasia (19 24

3580 84
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Notes to the accounts continued

4 Analysis of operating expenditure Croup

¢ miliion 245 08
Employee costs 2,376 2481
Depreciation and amortisation 715 48
Aircraft operating lease costs 221 190
Fuel and oil costs 1,102 304
Engineering and other aircraft costs 662 661
Landing fees and en route charges 645 682
Handling charges, catering and other operating costs 1303 1,328
Selling costs 1,135 1,188
Accommedation, ground equipment costs and currency differences 739 874
Total operating expenditure 8,898 8,856
Tortal gperating expenditure comprises:
Cost of sales 8,711 8,679
Administrative expenses 187 177
Totat operating expenditure 8,898 8,856
5 Operating profit
a Reconciliation of operating profit to cash inflow from operating activities Croup
E #niliinn 2641 20
Croup operating profic 380 84
Drepreciation and amortisation 715 648
Other items not involving the movement of cash {n 39
{Increase)/decrease in stocks and debeors {38} 4
Increase in creditors 195 411
Cash inflow from operating acrivities 1.251 1186
b Operating profit is arrived at after charging:
Depreciation of group tangible fixed assets Canup
£ ritlion 250t 2608
Owred assets 335 274
Finance leased aircraft 132 112
Hire purchased qircraft 202 223
Other leasehold interests 43 38
712 647
Operating lease costs Croup
k. mitHon 2401 2639
Lease rentals - aircraft 221 150
- property 128 128
Hire of equipment and charter of aircroft and crews 163 130
512 468
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5 Operating profit continued

Auditors’ remuneration

EGos 20M
Group auditors - audit fees 1,247
- other professional fees
— United Kingdom 3,560
- OVerseas 568
Other quditors  — qudit fees 14
5.38%
Directors” emoluments Curoup
20M ey
Feas 507 506
Salary and benefits 962 803
Bonus 326
Compensction for foss of office 1,980
1,795 3289
The report of the Remuneration Committee discloses full details of directors’ emolumenes and can be found on pages 19 to 22.
6 Employee costs and numbers
Mty 206 00
The average number of persons employed n the group during the year was as follows:
United Kingdom 50,086 51310
Overseas 12,089 13,847
62,175 65,157
Coroes
E andlion 20M 2608
Wages and salaries 1,682 1,790
Social security costs 167 154
Contributions to pension schemes 124 123
1,973 2097
7 Share of operating profit in associates g
E pillion 26401 2000
Operating profies less losses 64 75
8 Other income and charges G
Lniihon 2401 2
Income from trade investments 1
Other
1 5
Other incorme and charges represented by:
Group 1 5
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Notes to the accounts continued

9 (Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets and investments (see also Note 19}

Croup
E milion 2431 ity
Net lass on disposal of investment in Participations Aéranautigues (54)
Net profit on disposal of investment in Galiteo International Inc. 149
Share of net profit on disposal of investment in Amadeus by Iberia 22
Net profit on part disposal of investment in Equant 70
Net (loss)/profit on disposal of other fixed assets and investments (37) 30
(69} 249
{Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets and investments represented by:
Group (96} 237
Assoctates (including disposal of Amadeus) 27 i2
(69) 249
10 Net interest payable Croup
£ nuliion 20 G0
Interest payable
On bank loans 60 65
On finence leases 117 &S
On hire purchase arrangements 212 198
On other loans, including interest of £11 million (2000: £11 million) on Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 35 44
424 395
Interest capitalised (35} (38)
389 357
interest receivable (92) (85)
Retranslation {credits)/charges on currency borrowings @n 136
226 168
Net interest payable represented by:
Group 215 396
Assaciates 11 12
226 408

In respect of all leans, including finance lease and hire purchase arrangements repayable in whole or in part after five years, the latest repayment date is July 2033.

Interest costs on progress payments are capitalised at 2 rate based on LIBOR {LLondoen taterbank Offered Rate) plus 0.5 per cent 1o reflect the average cost of
borrowing to the groap unless specific borrowings are used to meet the payments, in which case the actual rate is used.

11 Tax (see also Note 38)

Cortep

£ mitiien 204 2600

British Airways Plc and subsidiary undertakings
Linited Kingdom coeporation tax at 30% (2000: 30%)

8 {25

Less: relief for overseas tax (8 (125)

UK tax 0 4]

Overseas tax 7 17

Advance carporation tax 1)

Prior year adiustments 8 (26)
(2} 9

Share of tax of associated undertakings 24 24
22 15

There is no UK tax payable on the operating result for the year. UK fax arises on dividend remittances from overseas and is partially offset by double tax relief.
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11 Tax continued

There is no charge for deferred tax. § full provision had been made for deferved tax there would have been a credit for the year of £137 miltion {2000

charge
£41 million) arising principally from capital aliowances.
Gty
. mdllior 2001 2004
Acceterated capital aliowances {147 51
Other timing differences 9 [£10]
Advance corporation tax 1
{137) 41

The need to provide for deferred tax relating to accelerated capital allowances is dependent on the way in which capital expendituee [mainly on aircrak) is

financed. Under current accounting standards, and based on future capital expenditure plans, it is not expected thac there will be a requirement to provide for
any deferred 1ax on new originating tming differences.

12 Dividends

Growy
£ mittion FAUIH ke
tntertm dividend of 5.10p per share paid (2000: 5.10p per share) 55 57
Final dividend of 12.80p per share proposed {2000; 12.80p per share) 138 138

193 195

There was no charge to the profit and Joss account in relation to 1999-00 final dividends paid te Convertible Capital Bond holders (1998-99: £1 million}, who
converted their bonds in June 2000, in accordance with the terms of the bond.

13 Earnings per share

Groun

Peofi f Jonsy Earnings per shate

2001 Bt 501 oy

£m £ Panie Yegee
Profit/{loss) for the year and basic earnings per share 114 {21} 10.6 (2.0
Diluted prefit/floss) for the year and earnings per share 114 21 10.5 n/a

Weighted average number of shares for basic EPS {'000)
Dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Qutstanding share options ['000)

1075496 1,074,823

9,265 n/a

Weighted average number of shares for diluted EPS {'000) 1,084,761 1,074,823

Basic earnings per share are calculated on a weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue as adjusted for shaves hetd for the purposes of Employee
Share QOwnership Plans including the Long Term Incentive Plan.

n/a: not applicable

14 Intangible assets

Goodwill g
[ HEHIOS 2001 peiiin
Cost

Balance at April 1 63

Additions 1 63
Balance at March 3t 64 63
Amortisation

Balance at April 1 1

Charge for the year 3 !
Batance at March 3§ 4 i
Net book amounts

March 31, 200t 60

March 31, 2000 62
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Notes to the accounts continued

15 Tangible assets

a  Group Cronp ntgh

£ muliion

ORIy Lauiprent L ety

Cost o valuation
Balance at April 1

11,896 1,714 784 14,394 13811
Exchange movemnents 248 13 2 263 10
Additions - nec of progress payments (Note 15¢) §,192 a5 125 1412 1,318
Disposals (745) 27) (62) {834 (745}
Transfers (105} 105
Balance at March 31 12,591 1,690 954 15,235 14,394
Depreciation
Balance at April 1 3,459 226 415 4,100 3972
Exchange movements 90 1 91 3
Charge for the year 553 53 106 712 647
Disposals {376) (8 {50) (434} (522)
Balance at March 31 3,726 272 471 4,469 4,160
Net beck amounts
March 31, 2001 8,865 1,418 483 10,766
March 31, 2000 8437 1,488 369 10,294
Utilisation at March 31
Assets in current use
Owned 2,265 1.213 433 3,911 3406
Finance leased 2,002 2,002 1.554
Hire purchase arrangements 3,832 3,932 4042
Progress payrments 327 192 48 567 919
Assets held for resale 14 14 39
Capitalised interest 325 13 2 340 334
8,865 1,418 483 10,766 10,294
The net book amount of property comprises:
Freehold 374 376
Long leasehold 434 412
Short leasehold 610 700
1,418 1,488

Net bonk amnung

Yalusdaefons:  Deprediation FME Aon
Revaiued fleet and properties are included in the accounts at the folfowing arnounts:
Fleet - valuation 218 188 30 34
- subsequent additions at cost 39 32 7 12
Property — valuation 509 66 443 470
- subsequent gdditions at cost 82 16 66 66
March 31, 2001 348 302 546
March 31, 2000 860 278 582
if these assets had not been revatued they would have been included at the following amors:
March 31, 2001 526 270 256
Morch 31, 2000 533 247 286
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15 Tangible assets continued

b Company Compaay o
£ orwilion heos Yoty Enuiprent 2003 2084
Cost or valuation
Balance at April 1 11,743 1,613 598 13,954 13,466
Exchange movements 248 12 260 25
Additions - net of refund of progress payments 1,166 94 104 1,364 1,203
Disposals (623) 7 {20) (660) (740
Transters () 111
Balance at March 31 12,534 1,591 793 14,918 13954
Depreciation
Balance at April 1 3,408 203 353 3,957 3,853
Exchange movements S0 90 8
Charge for the year 549 50 87 686 613
Disposals (323) {4) {(t7) (344) (517}
Balance at March 31 3717 249 423 4,389 3,957
Net book amounts
March 31, 2001 2,817 1,342 370 10,529
March 31, 2000 8342 1410 245 9,947
Utilisation at March 31
Assets in current use
Qwned 2,217 1,137 322 3,676 3,148
Finance feased 2,002 2,002 1,514
Hire purchase arrangements 3,932 3,932 4,042
Progress payments 327 192 48 567 920
Assets held for resate 14 14 39
Capitatised interest 325 13 338 334
8,817 1,342 370 10,529 9,997
The net book amount of property comprises:
Freehold 373 374
Lang leasehokd 367 348
Shart leasehold 602 688
1,342 1,410
Net huok amnunt
Valuarisusonss  Dapreciaton 240}y 2ikH5
Revilued fieet and properties are included in the accounts at the following amounts:
Fleet - valuation 218 188 30 34
— subsequent odditians at cost 39 32 7 12
Property — valuation 509 6o 443 465
— subsequent additions af cost 82 16 66 65
March 31, 2001 848 102 546
March 31, 2000 854 273 576
If these assers hac not been revalued they would have been included ar the following amounts:
March 31, 2001 526 270 256
Morch 31, 2000 326 246 280

farasgnty Mo
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Notes to the accounts continued

15 Tangible assets continued

¢ Revaluation

At March 31, 1985, all freeholtd properties of the group, and certain leasehold properties, where leases give long term secarity of tenure and rights to

development, disposal and sub-letting, were revalued at open market value for existing use.

d Depreciation

The Fleet is generally depreciated over periods ranging from 18 to 25 years after making allowance for estimated residual values. Effective anngal

depreciation rases resulting from those methods are shown in the following table:

Group
% 2U0E 2400
Boeing 747-200, 747-400, and 777-200 38 43
Boeing 767-300 and 757-200 4.5 4.6
Aicbus A320, A319, Boeing 737-400 and Avra R}100 49 59

Property, apart from freehald land, is depreciated over its expected useful life subject to a maximum of 540 years. Equipment is depreciated aver periads ranging

from 3 to 25 years, according to the type of equipment.

e Analysis of group tangible asset additions

Cronap total

£ my:Hion Hen Eaptipiment 26 2000
Cash paid 915 75 125 1,115 1.019
Acquisitions under loans, finance leases and hire puschase arrangements 637 26 663 639
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings 8
Acquisition of quasi-subsidiary undertaking 33
Capitalised interest 22 13 35 38
Accrual movements {9) {19) (28) (52)
1,565 95 125 1,785 1,705

Refund of progress payments 373) (373 {387}
1,192 95 125 1,412 1318

16 Capital expenditure commitments

Capiral expenditure authorised and contracted for, but not provided for in the accounts, amounts to £1,160 million far the group (2000: £1,830 million} and

£1,155 million for the company (2000: £1,8138 million).

The outstanding commitments include £189 million which relates to the acquisition of 5 Boeing 777 aircrafc on order and £915 million which relates to the
acquisition of Airbus A318, A319 and A320 aircraft scheduled for delivery over the next 4 years. It is intended that these aircraft will be financed partially by

cash haldings and internal cash flow and partially through external financing, induding committed facilities arranged prior to delivery.

At March 31, 2001 British Airways had undrawn committed aircraft financing Facilities of $225 million (expiry date March 31, 2003) and a further £40
million (expiry date March 31, 2002 relating to the New World Cargo Centre, rogether with unused overdraft and revolving credit facilicies of £40 million.

Undrawn uncommitied money market fines of £65 mitiion were atse hetd with a number of banks.
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17 Operating lease commitments

G Company
£ milison 2301 2008 2131 2005
a  Fleec
The aggregate payments, for which there are commitments under operating
leases as at the end of the vear, fall due as foliows:
Amounts payoble within one year relate to commitments expiring as follows:
Within one year 8 47 6 10
Berween one and five years 150 125 73 49
Over five years 58 45 g 5
Within one year 216 217 88 64
Berween one and five years 519 497 175 133
Over five years 123 1is 8 4
858 829 271 201
b Property and equipment
The aggregate payments, for which there are commitments under operating
leases as at the end of the year, fall due as follows:
Amouqnts payable within one year relate (o commitments expiring as follows:
Within ene year 23 32 22 31
Between one and five years 23 22 22 20
Over five yeors 33 32 33 30
Within one year 79 86 77 81
Between one and five vears 197 188 189 175
QOwer five years, ranging up o the year 2145 1,632 1450 1,613 1423
1,908 1,724 1.879 1,679
Property and equipment commitments relate largely 1o property leases.
18 Investments
a  Group
i) Associated undertakings Group ol
£ million Taguiny Loans ag Last 2004 2005
Balance at April 1 495 12 507 323
Exchange movements (26) (26} (15}
Additions 36 36 175
Goodwill amortisation (1) {1) 20
Share of attributable results (18} (18) 7
Share of movements on other reserves 5 (3)
Disposals 1 (12) (n
Part refund of initial investment in Iberia {i01) {101)
Reclassification to quasi-subsidiary loans (3)
Balance at March 31 381 0 381 507
Equity comprises:
Cost of shares 390 475
Goodwill {less amartisation) 19 20
Goodwill set off (80) (80
Share of post-acquisition profits 65 88
Share of movements on other reserves (13) (8}
381 495
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Notes to the accounts continued

18 Investments continued

ii} Trade investments

Cust Frovisians Croup toral
£ rilion Shares Loans Shares Loansg 200t 2a00
Balance at April 1 34 4 23 {1} 35 68
Additions 12 1 13 3
Disposat (28) (28) (36}
Balance at March 31 18 5 (2) ) 20 35

In March 2001, the group purchased a 16.7 per cent shareholding in the Airline Group for £8 millien. In addition, the group also invested £4 million in
Cordiem LLC. In June 2000, the group disposed of its investment in Hogg Robinsen Plc for cash proceeds, net of costs, of £33 million.

iii} Investment in own shares

Lo
£ untiion 20 2400
Investment in own shares 23 25

Investrnent iy own shares consists of shares held by British Airways Pic Employee Benefits Trustees (Jersey) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary, for the
purposes of the employee share ownership plans including the Long Term Incentive Plan, At March 31, 2001 the group and company held 6,650,000 shares

for the Leng Term Incentive Plan and other employee share schemes (2000: 6,650,000 shares). The purchase of shares was financed by British Airways Plc
granting a loan to British Airways Plc Employee Benefits Trustees (lersey} Limited.

Net book value of total investments

Groug ot

Trade  fvestment m
¥ nukiion IPVOLTTERTS owet 5T 200 2630
Listed 278 4 25 307 376
Untisted 103 16 119 191

Foflowing Iberia’s initial public offering, shares comatenced trading on April 3, 2001, Therefore, Iberia has been included as an unlisted investment, as at

March 31, 2001 in the table above.

Market value of listed investments

Grogy: totai

£ miliion 2841 2000
Associated undertakings 276 115
Trade investments 40 144
Investment in own shares 21 22
The group’s principal investments in subsidiary undertakings, associated undereakings and trade investments are listed on page 53.

b  Company

i} Subsidiary undertakings and quasi-subsidiary Cast Prowisions Camnduy toral
£ miliion Shares Loams Shgrn Laans Pt} 2600
Balance at April 1 2,098 47 (734} 1,391 388
Exchange movements 4 4 {6}
Additions 14 7 [20) 1 287
Net transfer to subsidiary undertakings 229
Disposal (3} 3}
Reclassification from intra group loans {12}
Reclassification from associated undertakings 5
Balance at March 3t 2,113 54 (774) 1.393 1,391
ii) Associated undertakings

Balance at Aprit 1 2 2 7
Additions 12 12
Reclassification to quasi-subsidiary loans 5)
Batance at March 31 14 14 2
iif) Trade investments

Balance at April 1 33 4 2) (1} 34 31
Additions 12 1 13 3
Disposal (28) {28}

Balance at March 31 17 5 (2) (1) 19 34
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18 Investments continued

iv) Invesument in own shares Company rral

L omallion 260 2085

Investmeng in own shares 25 25

See Note 18aii)

Net book value of total investments Subsidiary and Company onal

Qarasi-Subsidiary Assocrated Frzde  nvesiment in
£ wnithion undertakings  undenukingy  iessiments own shares 2001 2005
Listed 25 23 53
Unlisted 1,393 14 19 1,426 1,352

Markec value of listed investments Company tial

£ mdtion 2011 2z
Trade investments 36 140
Investment in own shares 21 22

19 Disposal of Participations Aéronautiques S.A.

In May 2000, the group completed the disposal of its 85.83 per cent holding in Participations Aéronautiques S.A., the holding company of Air Liberte S.A.
and TAT European Airlines 5S.A. to Teitbout Antibes B.V. The loss arising from the disposal was as Follows:

Ceoup rat

Sate proceeds {ner of disposal costs)

28
Net liabtlities of Participations Aéronautiques at March 31, 2000 91
Goodwill written back on disposal {173)
Loss on disposal {54)
Loss on disposal before and after raxation {54)

20 Acquisition of associates

i} [Iberia

On March 15, 2000, in partnership with American Airlines, Brirish Airways completed the purchase of 10 per cent of Iberia Lineas Aéreas de Esparia, S.A.
('tberia’), an international airline based in Madrid, Spain. The 10 per cent investment is held by BA & AA Holdings Limited. in which British Airways has a 90
per cent stake. The consideration paid was subject to amendment based on the initial public offering price. Iberia completed its flotation on April 3, 2001 at an
offer price of euro 1.19 which meant that a refend hecame payable 1o BA & AA Holdings just after the end of the financiat year under review. The refund was
received by British Airways on April 19, 2001 and has been taken into account in determining the goodwill arising on the acquisition,

During the period since acquisition, British Airways has exercised significant influence over theria ard as a result has accounted for che investment as an
associated undertaking.

The table below shows the calculation of the goodwill arising on the acquisition:

£ millioe Ceroup ot

Cash consideration

171
Refund related to offer price (t01)
Legal and professicnal fees 4
Net cost of investment 74
Net assets acquired at date of acquisition 64
Accounting policy realignment adjustments 2
Fair value of net assets acquired at acquisition 66
Goodwill arising on 10% stake 8
Minority interest (n
Goodwill arising on 9% stake 7

it Online Travel Portal Limited

Qn August 30, 2000 British Airways purchased for £11 million a 23.1 per cent shareholding in Online Travel! Portal Limited, an online travel agency business.
The fair vatue of the net assers acquired is considered to be £11 millien and hence there is no goodwill arising,
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Notes to the accounts continued

21 Quasi-subsidiary

Summarised financial information of the London Eye Company Limited, prepared in accordance with British Asrways' accouneing policies, is set out below.

Tural
£ mibion 24561 20405
Profit and Loss Account
Turnaver 29 2
Ovperating profic/(loss) 5 2
Loss before taxation and loss for the period {12} (2)
Balance Sheet
Fixed assets 76 75
Current assets 9 5
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year (11} {14
Net current liabilities (2} )]
Total assets less current liabilities 74 70
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 89 (74)
Capital and reserves deficit {15) 4)
Cash Flow Statement
Cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 13 (3]
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 2)
Capital expenditure and financial investment (6} {44)
Nert cash inflow/(outflow) before management of liquid resources and financing 5 {52}
Financing 49
Increase/(decrease) in cash 5 {3}

There are no recognised gains or losses other than the loss for the period. The loss for the pericd includes interest payable to British Airways of £15 million
{2000: Enil million).

22 Investments in associates
Summarised financial information

No individual associate accounts for more than 25 per cent of any of the gross assets, gross liabilicies, turnover or operating resules {on a three year average) of
the group {excluding any amount for associates).

Cronp
£ miliion 2871 2060
Operating revenue 1,223 864
Profit for the year 56 51
Share of fixed assets 1,114 1039
Share of current assets 326 206
Share of assets 1,440 1,245
Liabilities due within one vear {503} (336)
Liabiliries due after more than one year (584} (542}
Share of liabilities {1,089) {928)
Share of net assets at associated companies’ year end accounting dates 351 317
Goodwill on acquisition (less amortisation) 19 20
Additional equity investment in Online Trave! Portal Limited 11
Investment in Eberia 158
Total group investment in associated underwakings at March 31 3 495

The sterling equivalents for the statements of operations of Qantas Airways Limited have been translated at the average exchange rares for the six manths ended fune 30,
2009 and six months ended December 31, 2000 {2000 six months ended June 30, 1999 and six months ended December 31, 1999). The sterling equivalents for the
results of Iberta have been reanslared using the average rate for the nine months ended December 31, 2000. Balance sheets for all associates have been translated at the
closing rates ruling a1 March 31, At March 31, 2000 it was not possible to establish the fair vatues of attributable assets and labilities of Iberia since its acquisition, |t was
shown at cost of imvestment at that time. The comparatives for March 31, 2000 have now been restated to reflece the goedwitl arising an the acquisition.

LY A
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23 Srtocks

Groun Company
£ pudiion 2001 2006 2601 2004
Raw materials, consumables and work in progress 66 78 47 51
The replacement cost of stocks is considered to be not materially different from their balance sheet values.
24 Currency exposures
Garoug

Net foreipn Gorency sssensliahilivies)

Funtiionsd currency

Sterbing LIS gallar £ura Japarei2 ven Oy 20061 2006
Sterling 229 (101) {813) 248 (437} {553}
Euro 1 {58) (57) (59}
Total March 31, 2001 1 171 (101) {813) 243 (494)
Total March 31, 2000 4 95 {23} (852) 164 (612)

The table above shows the monetary assets and liabilities of the group that are nor denominated in the functional (or ‘operating’} currency of the operating
untt invalved other than certain non-sterling borrowings treated as hedges of aircraft accounted for as foreign currency assets, and of net investments in
overseas subsidiaries. Amounts aiso take into account the effect of derivatives entered into to manage these currency exposures.

25 Debtors ESEET Company
£ mdiion Al 2004 24 2005
Trade debtors 853 889 818 834
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 33 52
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 39 33 26 32
Other debtors 212 121 89 73
Prepayments and accrued income 340 325 227 242
1,444 1368 1,243 1,203
Amounts due after more than one year included above are not significant,
26 Cash
a  Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt Cirgrgt
f milbion 20 250G
Decrease in cash during the year (300 (3
Net cash cutflow from decrease in debt and lease financing 524 516
Cash inflow from liquid rescurces {159) (9}
Changes in net debt resulting from cash flows 335 504
New loans and finance leases taken out and hire purchase arrangements made (663) (659)
Assumed from subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year (42)
Divested from subsidiary undertakings sold during the year 69
Conversicn of Convertible Capiral Bonds 2005 i3
Exchange movements (48) (206)
Movement in net debt during the year (307) (390)

Net debt at April 1 {5,916) (5,.526]

Net debt at March 31 (6,223) {5.5816)
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Notes to the accounts continued

26 Cash continued

b Analysis of net debt

Lrpup
Bslance ar Oiher Balance 3¢
£ umbhon Aprii Lash fow nonecash Exchange Mareh 31
Cash 103 (32} 71
Overdrafts (5} 2 3}
98 (30) 68
Short-term loans and deposits ,043 {159) (L} 865
Bank and other loans {1.043) 14 3 35) {1.041)
Finance leases and hire purchase arrangements {5901 510 617N 6 (6,002)
Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 (13 {113)
Year to March 31, 2001 (5.916} 335 (594) (48) (6,223}
Year to March 31, 2000 (5,526} 504 (688) {206) (5.916)
¢ Analysis of short-term loans and deposits by currency Cepparge Company
£ antiion 2008 2400 20831 piles]
Sterling 646 754 601 728
us dollar 27 34 15 26
Japanese yen 192 215 192 215
865 1,043 808 969
Short-term surplus cash is depasited for periods typically with maturity of less than six monrths.
27 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year Corstsgr RNy
£ miliion 20601 2008 2851 2p08
Loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements
Bonk and other loans 49 140 35 122
Finance leases 106 120 105 112
Hire purchase arrangements 329 288 329 288
Loans from subsidiary undertakings 7 8
484 548 476 530
Qverdrafts — unsecured 3 5 3
Trade creditors 1,211 1,159 1,050 977
Unredeemed frequent fiver liabilities 108 87 72 54
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings 1,015 1,032
Amounts owed to associated undertakings 30 27 30 27
Qther creditors
Other creditors 341 458 321 349
Corporate fax 3t 18 24 13
Other tax and social security 44 64 40 41
416 540 385 403
Dividends payable 139 140 139 138
Accruals and defersed income
Sales in advance of carringe 846 801 754 697
Accrugls and deferred income 71 59 33 34
97 860 787 731
3,308 3,366 3,957 3892
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28 Barrowings and other creditors

Geoud Caompuny
£amiltion 24041 2064 2001 204
Loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements
Bark and other loans 992 963 967 848
Finance leases 2,240 1,768 2,238 1,727
Hire purchose arrangements 3.327 3,725 3,327 3,725
Loagns from subsidiory undertakings 298 300
6,559 6,396 6,830 6,600
Oxher creditors 22 56
Accruals and deferred income 207 163 133 119
6,783 6613 6,963 6719
29 | oans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements
a Toral loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements Croup Company
¥ onuliion 2003 2000 2601 260
Loans
Bank — French franc FFr22m !
~ Us dollar US$349m USs557m LIS3$349m usss2am |
~ sterling £674m £570m £642m £526m ‘
919 921 888 855
Euro-sterling notes 100 196 100 100
Orher —sterling 22 22 14 15
Loans from subsidiary undertakings - euro euro3G0m auro300m
- sterfing £119m £127m
305 308
Finance leases - French franc FFra4m
- US daller US$720m Uss3qim LUS$720m US3329m
- sterling £1,841m £1,633m £1,838m £1,632m
2,346 1.888 2,343 1,839
Hire purchase arrangements - Jopanese yen ¥210,883m ¥214,968m ¥210,883m ¥214,968m
— Us dofiar US$869m US$1.037m us$869m LIS§1,037m
- sterling £1,866m £2,048m £1,866m £2,048m
3,656 4,013 3,656 4,013
7.043 6,944 7,306 7,130
Comprising;
Bank loans
Repayable wholly within five yeors 268 397 237 331
Repayable in whole or in part ofter five years 651 524 651 524
91% 021 8838 355
QOrher loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements
Repayable wholly within five years 982 647 1,091 600
Repayable in whole or in part after five years 5.142 5378 5,327 5675
6,124 6,023 6418 6275
7.043 6,944 7,306 7,130

Bank and other loans are repayable up to the year 2016, In addition to finance leases and hire purchase arrangements, bank and other loans of the group
amountng to US$340 mitlion (2000: US3$565 miltion), and £307 million (2000: £190 million) and bank loans of the company amounting to US$340 million
{2000: US3514 million} and £307 million (2000: £#90 million) are secured on aircraft.
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29 Loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangemens continued

b Analysis by type of borrowing

Ciroug
2401 2G04}
Fixed rare burrowings
Wweighind weeighied

AVTIED 1318 Touak Torit
years 4% 5 miilinn £ miihon £ milfion £ sifhon
Sterling 6.1 8.28 556 3,947 4,503 4374
us dollar 10.7 8.10 267 1092 1,359 1,245
lapanese yen 7.0 1.49 1,181 1,181 1314
Euro 10

Total 2001 7.2 42% 2,004 5,039 7.043
Toeaf 2000 73 143 2,140 4,304 6,944

Floating rates of interest are based on LIBOR (Londen Interbank Offered Rate)

The interest sate profiles of the Convertible Capital Bonds and the euro perpetual preferred securities are disclosed separately in Notes 31 and 37 respectively.

¢ Incidence of repayments

Croup
Hire purchase
E ritiion pank loans  Omner lozes bmance leases  arrzegemanrs 2434t pith
Instatments falling due:
Within one year 47 2 106 329 484 548
After more than cne year
Between one ond twe yeors 47 F b4 443 57F 627
Between two and five years 377 3 431 1,117 1,928 1,770
in five yeors of more 448 114 1.695 1,797 4054 3,999
872 120 2,240 3,327 6,559 6,396
Total 2001 919 122 2,346 3.656 7,043
Total 2000 921 122 1,888 4013 6,944
Analysis of total 2001
British Airways Plc 888 114 2,343 3,656 7,001 6,822
Subsidiary undertakings 31 8 3 42 122
919 122 2,346 3,656 7,043 6,944
30 Analysis of changes in borrowings during the year .
Hune
feases ael )
Coroup
Bark end i purcnase
. million Qe Nt arrzngements 2001 26496
Balance ar April 1 1,043 5,901 6,944 6,552
New loans raised 214 214 60
Loans on acquisition of subsidsary 43
Divested from subsidiary undertakings sold during the year (23} {46} (69)
Loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements undestaken to finance
the acquisition of aircraft and ather assets 663 663 659
Repayment of amounts borrowed {228) {510) (738) (576)
Exchange movements 35 (6) 29 208
Balance ar March 31 1,041 6,002 7,043 6,944
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31 Convertible Capital Bonds 2005

(o
L rithon 2061 pivss
113 13

The terms of the 9.75 per cent Convertible Capital Bonds allow the holders to convert into British Airways Plc ordinary shares during the period June 1993 o
June 2005 on the basis of one ordinary share for every £2.34 {adjusted for the effect of the 1993 rights issue) of Bonds held. On June 15, 2000, 145,000
ordinary shares were issued in exchange for 341,000 Bonrds (June 15, 1999, 5,732,000 ordinary shares were issued in exchange for 13,416,000 Bands). The
terms also provide that on maturity in 2005, the company may require remaining bondholders to convert their Bonds into ordinary shares of the company
which would be sold on their behalf. If the proceeds of such a sale are less than the issue price of the Bonds, the company has to fund any deficit from its own
resources, Full conversion of the remaining Bonds would require the issue of 48,128,000 ordinary shares,

The mid market closing prices of the Bonds and the ordinary shares at March 31, 2001 as quoted in the Londoen Stock Exchange Daily Official List were
147.8p and 315.0p each respectively.

32 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Gy

Frasifors finm

Batance & i andd (& Prapvasiots Balade at
L withon Aprt 1 lossacount mavaments uziised March 21
Pensions and similar obligations 10 5 {n 14
Past-retirement medical benefics 24 4 1 29
Severance : 47 40 (60} 27
Year to March 31, 2001 81 49 (60) 70
Year to March 31, 2000 65 87 3 (74) 81
Analysis of toga) 2001
British Airways Pic 79 50 {60} 69
Subsidiary undertakings 2 (1 1
Year 1o March 31, 2001 31 49 {60} 70

The severance provision at March 31, 20601 covers both pension augmentation costs relating to severance for individuals who have left the group in the
current financial year and committed severance costs to be paid during the next financial year.

33 Litigation

a  Alegal claim has been made against the company by Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited. Having regard to legal advice received, and in all the circumstances,
the directors are of the opinion that this claim witl not give rise to liabilities which will in the aggregate have a material effect on these accounts.
b There are a number of identified legal and other claims which emanate from international airline operations and other activities of the group for which the
directoss have made what they believe is appropriate provision.
34 Share capital Gronep aned Company
2eiH 04
Number of Mumbar of
shares stares
Oudinary shares oF 25p each i £ million 0o
Authorised
Ag April 1 and March 31 1,508,000 377 1,508,000 307
Allotied, called up and fully paid
At April ¢ 1,081,515 270 1,073,167 268
Conversion of Convertible Capital Bonds 145 5732 2
Exercise of options undesr Employee Share Option Schemes 892 1 1,562
Conversion of scrip dividends 1,054
Ag March 31 1,082,552 27 1081515 270
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Motes to the accounts continued

35 Share options

Croup and Company

Fazmber of shares Pt 2608

Qutstanding at April 1 50,999 22,908

6,327 34,078
(892) {1,562
(3.656) [4,425)

Granted in the year
Exercised during the year
Expired/cancelled

At March 31 52,778 50,999

Date exercisable 2001-2010 2000-2009

195p-465p  195p-579p
195p-419p 196p-419p

Price per share

Price range of options exercised during the year

36 Reserves

a Group s tural
Shas promium luation

£ antiion pitis] n6n

Balance at April 1 785 285 1,807 2877 3,087

Retained loss for the year {(79) {79 (216}

Transfers relating to revalued assets, including release of prior year deficit 5 (53

Exchange and other movements (30} (30} (20

Goodwill written back on disposal 173 173 7

Reduction due 1o QUEST (see below) {23

Share premium 3 3 21

Balance ar March 31 788 290 1,866 2,944 2877

The group profir and loss account includes cumulative retained profits in respect of associated undertakings and is shown in Note 18,

The group has a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust ("QUEST) for the purposes {inter alia} of the 1993 Share Save Scheme. No contributions were made
during the year to the GUEST {2000: £2 million),

b Goodwill

Cumulative goodwill set off against reserves at March 31 comprises: Gronp total

£ onbioh 2 2000

In respect of subsidiary undertakings 442 615

In respect of associated undertakings 80 80
522 695

¢ Company Company 00!

frenmutn Revaluanon Frofit and
£ anttion

TESETVE  Hds Boumt 150 00
Balance at April { 785 285 1,665 2,735 2675
Retained profir for the year 72 72 72
Transfers relating to revalued assets, including release of prior year deficit 5 {5)

Exchange and other movements 16 16 an
Reduction due to QUEST {see above) (2}
Share premium 3 3 Z1
Balance at March 3t 788 290 1,748 2,826 2735
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37 Non equity minority interests

The non equity minority inierest represents euro 300 million of 6.75 per cent fixed interest perpetual preferred securities issued by British Airways Finance
(Jersey) L.P. in which the general partner is British Airways Holdings Limited, 2 wholly owned subsidiary of British Airways Plc. The holders of these securities
have no rights against group undertakings other than the issuing entity and, to the extent prescribed by the subordinated guarantee, the company. The
guarantee in relation to these securities has been structured so as to place the holders of the securities ranking senior to all other share capital bat junior to

any outstanding labilities including the Convertible Capital Bonds 2005,
38 Deferred tax (see also Note T1)

IF Full provision for deferred tax had been made at 30 per cent {2000: 30 per cent) the following amounts would have been required:

o~

Grous Campany
L raifbor 2003 2055 20a1 2006
Accelerated capital allowances less unrelieved losses 1,048 1,195 1,037 1,181
Qther tirning differences 3 (6) (24) {33}
Advance corporation tax {92) {93) {92} {93)
959 1.096 921 10355

In arriving at the amount of the full provision for the group at March 31, 2001 of £959 million, no account has been taken of any rax lkability that might arise

on the realisation of the revaluation surplus on properties as the directors have no present intention 1o dispose of any significant property asses.

39 Pension costs

British Airways operates two principal defined benefit pension schemes in the United Kingdom, the Airways Pension Scheme (APS), which is closed to new
members, and the New Airways Pension Scheme [NAPS), of which all new permanent employees over the age of 18 employed by the company and certain
subsidiary undertakings in the United Kingdom may become members. The assets of these schemes are held in separate trustee-administered funds, Benefits
provided under APS are based on final average pensionable pay and, fot the majority of members, are subject te increases in payment in line with the Retail
Price Index. Those provided under NAPS are based on final average pensionable pay reduced by an amount {the “abatement”} not exceeding one and a half times
the Government's lower earnings limit. NAPS benefits are subject to Retail Price Index increases in payment up t0 a maximum of 5 per cent in any one year.
Maost employees engaged outside the United Kingdom are covered by appropriate local arrangements.

Standard employees” contribufions range from 5.75 per cent 10 8.5 per cent of full pensionable pay in APS, and from 3.75 per cent 10 6.5 per cent of full
pensionable pay less the abatement in NAPS.

The latest actuarial valuations of APS and NAPS were made as at March 3¢, 2000 by an independent firm of qualified acruaries, Watson Wyartt Partners,
using the attained age method for APS and the projected unit methed for NAPS, These valuations showed that no empioyer's contributions were required in
respect of APS for the year to March 31, 2001 (2000: £ni! million) while for NAPS an employer’s contribution eqgual to an average of 3.0 times the standard
employees’ contribution for the period January 1, 2001 to March 31, 2001 (2.35 times for April {, 1999 to December 31, 2000} was appropriate.

Adl amounts recognised as costs were either funded ot paid directly.

Employer's contributions {calcutated as set out above for APS and NAPS) charged in the accounts were:

£ miibon

phitl 2005

Airways Pension Scheme
New Airways Pension Scheme 108 107
Cther pension schemes and provident funds — mainly outside the United Kingdom 16 16
i24 123

Ac the date of the actuarial valuatior, the market values of the assets of APS and NAPS amounred to £6,687 million and £3,736 million respectively. The
relevant value of the assets represented 114 per cenr {APS} and 93 per cent (NAPS} of the value of the benefits that had accrued to members after allowing
for assumed increases in earnings. In the case of APS, the market value of the assets together with future contributions from empicyees was sufficient to cover
both past and future service liabilities. In the case of NAPS, the actuarial value of the assets was insufficient to cover past service hiabilities. The emplioyer's
coneribution is intended to make up the balance of past and future service habilities after allowing for the future contributions by employees. The principal

assumptions used in the actuarial valuations were that, over the long term, the annual increase ine earnings and (NAPS only) in dividends would be 1.5 per
cen higher than annual increases in price inflation,

The annuat return on investments was assumed to be 0.59 per cent (APS) or 2.75 per cent {NAPS) higher than the enward increase in earnings. Annual

pension increases, over the fong term, were assumed to be equal to price inflation for APS and 0.25 per cent less than price intfation for NAPS.

Employer contributions in respect of overseas employees have been determined in accordance with best local praciice,
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MNotes to the accounts continued

40 Forward transactions

The group had cutstanding forward transactions to hedge foreign currencies and fuel purchases as follows:

FEER TS TR Steding equivaients
20m Je0 pit] 2600

Maturing within one year
- to cover futtire capital commitments in US doltars Us$70m  LS§150m £42m £90m
- 10 hedge future currency revenues against US dollars Usssm
- to hedge future currency revenues against sterling £71m £117m
- to hedge future operating payments against US dollors US$38m  USS190m
- to hedge future foel costs in US dollars USS594m  USSL067m £417Tm £669m
— to hedge future operating payments against sterling £72m
~ 1o hedge debt in foreign currency euro49m euro49m £31m £30m
Maturing after one year
— to cover future capital commitments in US dollars Us$70m £42m
— 1o hedge future currency revenues agoinst sterling £im
- 1o hedge future operoting payments against US dollars US$4m

41 Interest rate arrangements

To reduce interest tate risk, British Alrways has entered into single corrency interest rate swap arvangements so as 1o change the interest payable elements
of certain loans and lease obligations from variable te fixed rates and, accordingly, accounts for such swaps as hedges.

Quitstanding single currency interest rate swap arrangements are summarised as follows:

Norioni! artncipal balance

Termination dams

lrerest rares

Fixed pivisbhe

At March 31, 2001

Us doliar us$i13zm 2001-2003 8.4%-9.9%
At March 31, 2000
Us dollar Uss166m 2001-2003 8.4% - 9.9%
42 Fair values of financial instruments
a Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the group’s operations 2001 2008
Carrying Fair Fai
£ miliion WmEung wiiue wilne
Cash at bank and in hand and overdrafts 68 68 98 95
Shert-term {oans and deposits 865 365 1.043 1,043
Bank and other borrowings (941) (974} (943) {949)
Finance leases {1,346) {2,353} {1.888) {1,830}
Hire purchase arrangements {3.656) (3,665) (4.013) {4,019}
Euro-sterling notes {100} {123) {100) (121}
Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 (113} {166) {113) {169}
6.75 per cent perpetual preferred securities (186) {159) (177) (126)
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42 Fair values of financial inscruments continued

b Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile

Fair vajue

200 2656

Interest rate swaps (6] (4
Forward currency transactions 6 10
Fuel derivatives 4 35

No carrying amounts are shown as all items are held otf balance sheet.

Inciuded within forward currency transactions are derivative financial instruments held to hedge the currency exposure on expected future sales,
The following methods and assumptions were used by the group in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments:

Bank and other 1oans, finance leases, hire purchase arrangements and the non Japanese yen denominated portions of hire purchase arrangements carrying
fixed rates of interest

~ the repayments which the group is committed to make have been discounted at the relevant interest rates applicable at March 31, 2001.
Japanese yen denominaced portions of hire purchase arrangements carrying fixed rates of interest

- these amounts relate to the tax equiry poreions of Japanese leveraged leases which are personal to the group, and cannot be assigned and could not be
refinanced or replaced in the same cross border market on a marked to market basis, and accordingly a fair value cannot be determined. The carrying
value of £1,181 million has therefore been included as the fair value above.

Euro sterling notes, Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 and 6.75 per cent perpetual preferred securities
— quoted market value,

Off balance sheer interest rate swaps
- discounted cash flow analysis, 1o determine the estimated amount the group would receive or pay to terminate the agreements.

Off balance sheet forward currency transactions

- difference between marked to markee value and forward rate.
Off balance sheet over the counter {OTC) fuel derivatives
- the marked te market value of the instruments.

The fair value of all other assers and liabilities is deemed to be equal 1o their carrying value unless stated otherwise in the retevant note to rhe accounts,

¢ Hedges
The instruments used to hedge future exposures are interest rate swaps, forward currency contracts and fuel derivatives.

At March 31, 2001 there were unrecognised gains of £14 million and unrecognised losses of £10 million relating to hedges of future exposure. All of the

unrecoghised gains are expecred to occur within one vear and of the unrecognised losses, £4 million are expected to occur within one year and E£6 million
aher one year.

At March 31, 2000 there were unrecognised gains of £65 million and unrecognised fosses of £4 million. Of the unrecognised gains, £63 million related 1o the

period to March 31, 2001 and £2 million related o periods over one year and of the unrecognised fosses £1 million related to the year to March 31, 2001
and £3 million related to periods in excess of one year.

43 Contingencies

There were contingent liabilities at March 31, 2001 in respect of guarantees and indemnities entered into as part of, and claims arising from, the ordinary
course of business, upon which no materiat 10sses are likely 1o arise,

The group and the company have guaranteed certain borrowings, liabilities and commitments which at March 31, 2001 amounted to £143 millien (2000:

£254 million) and £689 million {2000: £801 million) respectively. For the company these incfuded guarantees given in respect of the Convertible Capital
Bonds and the fixed perpetual prefesred securities issued by subsidiary undertakings.
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Notes to the accounts continued

44 Related party transactions

The group has had transactions, during the year under review, with related parties, as defined in Financial Reporting Standard 8, Reiated Party Disclosures
As is comman practice in che airline industry, British Airways, Qantas, theria and Comatr from time ta time carry each ather's passengers travelling on the
other airlines’ tickets. The settlement between related carriers is actioned through the IATA Clearing House, of which the airlines below are members,
Qantas Airways Limited

The group has a 25 per cent equity invesiment in Qantas, and has a ‘Joint Services Agreement’ with the airline which started in November 1995, The
agreement allows the two airlines to co-operate in developing schedules and fares and to share revenues and costs for the core 'Kangaroo' routes between
Europe and Austealia,

As at March 31, 2001 the net trading batance due to British Airways from Gantas (via the IATA clearing house) amounted to £13 million (2000: £22 million).
Iberia Lineas Aéreas de Fspaia, S.A. (‘'Iberia’)

Tha group has a 9 per cent investment in fberia, which was completed in March, 20040. Substantial areas of opportunizy for co-operation and improvement
have been identified as a result of the investment, and work continues to pursue and implement these in the next financial year.

As at March 31, 2001 the net trading balance due to British Airways from Iberia amounted to £0.1 million (2000: £0.3 million).

Comair Limited

The group has a 8,3 per cent investment in Comair and has a franchise agreement with the company that commenced in Qctober 1996,

As at March 31, 2001 the net trading balance due ro Comair amounted 10 £9 million (2000: £9 million)

Directors’ and officers’ loans and transactions

No loans or credit transactions were outsianding with directors or officers of the company at the end of the year which need to be disclosed in accordance

with the requiremnents of Schedule 6 to the Companies Act 1985,

In addition to the above, the group also has transactions with related parties which are conducted in the normal course of airline business. These include the
provision of airline and related services,

45 Post balance sheet events

On April 30, 2001 British Airways and Thomas Cook Hoidings Limited cotnpleted the merger of the outbound package tour businesses from the United
Kingdom undertaken by British Airways Holidays Limited and Thomas Cook Hoelidays Limited. On that date, British Airways Hotidays Limited transferred its
outbound business and related net assets to a new company, BAH [2001) Limited, which at the same time acquired Thomas Cook Holidays Limited. Following
this wansaction Briash Alrways and Thomas Cook Holdings Limited each own 50 per cent of BAH (2001} Limited. Mo profit or loss arose on this ransaction.

On May 10, 2001 British Airways’ offer to acquire the whole of the issued share capital of British Regional Air Lines Group Plc ('BRAL) was deciared wholly
unconditional. The cash offer was recommended by the directors of BRAL and values BRAL at £78 million.

BRALUs main operating subsidiaties are British Regional Air Lines, which operates under a British Adeways franchise agreement, and Manx Air Lines, which
operates between the Isle of Man and major airports in the United Kingdom and freland. British Airways plans eo combine BRALs operations with those of
Brymon Airways Limited in order 10 co-ordinate better the shorthaut businesses in the United Kingdom regions and to remain competitive in this market.

46 Foreign currency translation rates

A March 34 Avirgsl ictage

20404 200G pAEHIEH 1500

LIS dollar 1.43 160 1.49 1.61

Japanese yen 178 164 163 180

German mark 3.7 3.26 3.19 305

Australian dollar 2.93 263 2.66 250

French franc 10.61 10.92 1071 10.23

furo 1.62 1.67 1.63 1.56
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Principal investments
At March 31, 2001

Subsidiary undertakings

Principal subsidiary undertakings are wholly-owned except where indicated,

FFrincipal actvizes

Camarsary b noipnration
Al repntranon

b princpal openitions

Air Miles Travel Promotions Ltd *

Airline marketing England
BA & AA Holdings Ltd* Holding company England
{90 per cent of equity owned) ]
Bedford Associates inc. Specialist software development USA
Britair Holdings Lid* Holding company England
British Airways Capital Lid * Airline finance Jersey
(89 per cent of founders’ shares owned)
British Airways (European Operations at Gatwick) 1.4d * Airline operations England
British Airways Finance B.V. * Airline finance Netherlands
British Airways Holdings Ltd * Airline finance Jersey
British Airways Holidays Ltd * Package holidays England
British Airways Maintenance Cardiff L1d * Aircraft mainienance England
British Airways Regional Lid * Air travel services England
British Airways Travel Shops Ltd * Travel agency England
British Asia Airways Ltd * Adr travel services England
CityFlyer Express Lud* Airline operations England
Deutsche BA Luftfahrtgeselischaft GmbH Airline operations Germany
Go Fly Limited * Airline operations England
Speedbird Insurance Cospany Lid * Insurance Bermuda
The Plimsolt Line Ltd * Airitne holding company England
{Holding company of Brymon Airways Lid)
World Netwerk Services Pyt Ltd* Data processing services India

Quasi-subsidiary undertaking

Prircipal agdvinies

Courny of mynrporation
and fegistragion

2l principal opecations

The London Eye Company Ltd *
{33 per cent of equity owned)

Leisure cormpany

England

Associated undertakings

HCEEagD of

Priscipal activiiies

Cogrtry of i peration

and princpal operations

Concorde Internaticnal Travel Pty Ltd 50.0 Travel services Australta
Qantas Alrways Lid 25.0 Airline operations Awustralia
Iberia Lineas Aéreas de Espana, 3.A. ("Iberia’) 9.0 Airline operations Spain
Comair L.td 18.3 Airline operations South Africa
Online Travel Portal ltd * 230 Internet travel agency England

Trade investments
Pergantapa of

eauity pwnad

Frincipst actheties

Caurtry Of incofpoeration

sned princpal eperations

The Airline Group * 16.7
Equant NV* (Note 1} 1.0
Cordiem LLC * 8.3

Air traffic control holding company

Telecemmunications

Internet trade exchange

England
Netherlands
LSA

* Owned directly by British Airways Plc

Nores:

1 Percentage of equity is based on latest audited information.
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United States generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP) information

US GAAP Accounting Principles

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Kingdom which differ in certain respects
from those generally accepted in the United States. The significant differences are described below:

Deferred tax

British Airways provides for deferred tax using the liability method on all material timing differences to the extent that it is probable that the liabilities witl
crystathise in the foreseeable future. Under US GAAP deferred tax is generally provided on a full liabilivy basis on all temporary differences between the
accounting and tax hases for the group.

Goodwill

Up to March 31, 1998, under UK GAAP, British Airways set off goodwill arising on acquisitions directly against retained earnings. Goodwill arising on
acquisitions since April 1, 1998 is capitalised and amortised over its useful economic life. Under US GAAP, goedwill arising on acquisitions has always

been amortised over its useful lite. For the purposes of determining the differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP in relation to goodwill arising prior
to March 31, 1998, the expected useful life of goodwill has been taken to be 40 years.

Property angd Flear valuation

Under US GAAP, tangible assets must be stated ar cost less accumutated depreciation in the financial statements. The valuation of properties at March 31,
1995 and fieet at March 31, 1988 incorporated by British Airways in its financial statements woulid not, therefore, have been included in financial statements

prepared in accordance with US GAAP and the subsequent charges for depreciation would have been correspondingly lower. When such assets are sold any
revaluation surpius thus realised would be reflecied in income,

Forward exchange contracts

Under US GAAP, the notionai gaint or foss arising on the translation of certain outstanding foreign currency forward exchange conrracts at each balance sheet

date, at the forward rates of exchange ruling art that dace, would kave been included in the determination of net income. British Airways does not take account
of such notional gains and losses.

Dividends

Under UK GAAP, dividends are recorded in the financial statements for the period to which the dividend relates. Under US GAAP, the liabdity for dividends

is recorded in the financial statements when declared. The proposed finai dividend at March 31, 2001 would not, therefore, be included in the financal
statements for 2001 prepared in accordance with US GAAP.

Foreign currency translation

Aircraft which are financed in whole or in part in foreign currency, either by loans, finance lease obligations or hire purchase arrangements, are regarded,
together with the related liabilities, as a separate group of assets and liabiities and accounted for in foreign cursency. The amounts in foreign cursency are
transtated into sterling ac rates ruling ac the balance sheer date and che differences arising from the translation of aircraft costs and relared foreign currency
loans are taken to retained earnings. Under US GAAP, the cost of these aircraft would be fixed in sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
original acquisition, lease or hire purchase and the exchange gain or loss on the related foreign currency loans would be reflected in income.

Gains on sale and [easeback transactions

Under UK GAAP, gains aristng on sale and leaseback ransactions are recognised as part of income 10 the extent that the sale proceeds do not exceed the fair
value of the assets concerned. Gains arising on the portion of the sale proceeds which exceed the fair value are deferred and amorzised over the minimum lease
terrn. Under US GAAP, the total gains, incleding any realised revatuation gains, would be deferred in full and amortised over the mimisium lease term.

Pension costs

Under US GAAP, the cost of providing pensions is auributed o periods of service in accordance with the benefit formrulae underlying the pension plans,

The resultant projected benefit obligation is matched against the current value of the underlying plan assets and unrecognised actuartal gains and fosses in
determining the pension cost or credit for the year, The net pericdic pension costs for these plans for the year ended March 31, 2001 ameunted to £111 million
(2000: £107 million) under UK GAAP compared with an estimated credit of £15 million (2000: charge of £189 million) under FAS 87 'Employers’ Accounting
for Pensions'. The resultant decrease in operating costs of £126 million (2000: increase of £82 millior), net of related deferred tax charge of £38 million (2000:

credit £25 million), would increase net income under US GAAP by £88 million (2000: decrease of £57 miltion), and would be reflected in the consolidated
balance sheet as an increase in accrued pension costs.

Capitalised operating leases

Uinder UK GAAP, certain aircraft operating leases have been capitalised and the related liabitities included in finance lease obligations and the resulting assets

are being depreciated over the remaining term of the lease. Under US GAAP, such leases would be classified as operating leases and neither the capital
element nor the associated l:ability would be brought onta the balance sheet.

Quasi-subsidiary

Under UK GAAP, where an entity, though not fulfilling the legal definition of a subsidiary, gives rise to benefits for the group rhat are, in substance, no
different than those that would arise were that entity to be a subsidiary, that entity is classified as a quasi-subsidiary. Under US GAAP, this entity would be
treated as an associated undertaking and, accordingly, the results of British Atrways’ quasi-sabsidiary would be accounted for as an associated undertaking.

Associated undertakings

Adjustments made in respect of associated undertakings accounted for under UK GAAP 1o biing then into line with the US GAAP accounting principles are
as set out above.

Trade investments

Under UK GAAP, trade investments are stated at cost tess provision for permanent diminution in value. Under LS GAAP, trade investments classified as
available for sale are stated at market vafue and the unrealised gains/losses are accounted for as other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity.

Investment in own shares

Under UK GAAF, company shares held for the purposes of employee share ownership pians (ESOP) te meet future requirements of employee share schemes

inciuding the Long Term tncentive Plan are recorded in the balance shees a3 fixed asset investments, Under US GAAP such shares are recorded in the balance
sheet as a reduction of shareholders’” equily.
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United States generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP} information continued

Stock — based compensation

FAS 123 'Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation’ encourages a fair value based method of accounting for employee stock options or similar equity
instriments, but allows continued use of the intrinsic value based method of accounting as prescribed by Accounting Principies Board Opinion 25 {{APB 257
‘Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees’. British Airways has elected to continue under APB 25 and consequently no compensation cost has been required

to be accounted for.
Frequent Flyer revenue

Under US GAAP, following the implementation of SAB 101 'Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements’, a proportion of frequent flyer revenue is deferred
until the frequent fiver airmiles are redeemed. The cumulative effect of this adjustment for the periods prior to April 1, 1999 was dealt with in the
determination of net income for the year ended March 31, 2000,

The estimated effect of the significant adjustments to net income and to shareholders’ equity which would be required if US GAAP were to be applied instead
of UK GAAP are summarised on pages 55 to 57,

Net income/(loss) under US GAAP

For the year ended March 31, 2001 b
2001 20846 2081
£ mitHon £ siiliion & midlion®
income/{ioss) for the year as reported in the group profit and loss account 114 {21} 163 (34)
Adjustmends:
Other revenue
Deferred frequent flyer revenue (15) {136) {21) (217)
Depreciation and amortisation
Goodwill set off in respect of subsidiary undertakings : (11) {15} {16} {24)
Goodwill set off in respect of associated undertakings E e)] {2} {n
Write back of goodwill amortised and impaired in prior years on Air Liberté § 56 (3%} 80
Fleet i 10 14
Finance leased aircraft 37 55 53
Property l 4 2 & ]
95 1 136 2
Aircraft operating lease costs (87 (96) (t24) {153}
Equity accounting of associated undertakings
Share of results of associated undertakings 1 14 1 22 }
Share of taxation of associated undereakings {1 (5} (1) (8)
9 14
lnterest payable 40 41 57 65
Pension costs 126 (82) 180 (131}
Exchange {losses)/gains
Arising on translation of aircraft related loans (152) (44} 217} {70}
Relating to revaluation of forward exchange contracts {4) 4 {6} 6
{156) {40y (223) (64)
{Loss)/income on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Arising on disposal of revalued aircraft 2 3
Avrising on disposal of revalued property (N 7 {10) 2
Arising on sale and leaseback transactions . 7 {2) 10 (3)
Loss on disposal of FRS3 aircraft {12) (17)
(12) t (" 2
Deferred rax
Effect of the above adjustments I (25) 64 (36} 102
Effect of differences in methodology i 146 {192) 208 {366}
121 {128} 172 {204}
112 {430y 160 (686)
Net income/{loss) as adjusted to accord with US GAAP 226 451) 323 (7200
Net incame/{foss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle as adjusted to accord with US GAAP 226 {371] EYA {592j
Cumulative effect on prior years of adopting SABE 101 {89 (128)
Net income/(loss) as adjusted to accord with US GAAP 226 (451) 321 {720}
Slaplber ot shgres " RYLEY] $00 G
Basic weighted average number of shares 1.075496 1,074,822 1075496 1,074,822
Diluted weighted average number of shares 1,084,761 1074822 1,084,761 1,074,822
* LSS amounts are included for infermation only. Transtation rate £1=51.43 £1=51.60
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Net income/(loss) under US GAAP continued
For the year ended March 31, 2001

it e
pende cens vt
Net income/(loss} per ordinary share as so adjusted basic
Income/(loss) before camulative effect of change in accounting principle
as adjusted to accord with US GAAP 21.0 (3¢.5) 29.9 (54.9)
Cumulative effect on prior years of adopting SAB 101 (7.4} (11.8)
210 {41.9) 29.9 (66.7)
Net income per ordinary share as so adjusted diluted
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principte
as adjusted to accord with US CAAP 20.8 n/o 29.7 n/a
Nec income/(loss) per American depositary share as so adjusted basic
Income/{loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
as adjusted to accord with US GAAP £2,10 £(345) $2.99 $(5.49)
Cumulative effect on prior years of adopting SAB 101 £(0.74) $(1.18)
£2.10 £{4.19) $2.99 5(6.67)
Net income per American depositary share as so adjusced diluted
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
as adjusted to accord with US GAAP £2.08 n/o $2.97 n/a
* LSS amounts are included for information only. Translation rate £1=51.43 £1=5160

n/a = not applicable
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Shareholders’ equity under US GAAP
At March 31, 2001

Girsrupn

2001 2001 204
£ willion $ miltion* 3 rufion”
Shareholders’ equity as reported in the group balance sheet 3.215 3147 4,584 3020
Adjustments:
Intangible assets
Goodwill set off in respect of subsidiary undertakings
Cost 448 621 639 991
Amortisation (137} (143} {195) {228}
Impairment {39 (62)
311 439 444 701
Tangible assets
Cost
Fleer (1.215) (1.089) (1,732) (1.737)
Property and equipment (398) (372} {568) (594) §
(1.613) {1,461} (2,300) (2331)
Amortisation
Fleet, property end equipment 613 516 874 323
Associated undertakings
Quasi-subsidiary 52 42 74 67
Net equity {16) (17} (23) (27)
Goodwilt ser off in respect of associated undertakings
Cost l! 30 80 114 128 1
Amordisation (16) {14) (23) (22)
64 66 91 106
Trade investments
Uplift 1o market value 39 15 56 183
Investmenc in own shares (25) (25) (36} (49)
Current assets
Debrors 3 5
Cash, shost-term loans and deposits (8} (3} (1) {5}
Current fiabilities
Loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements 38 80 83 128
Unredeemed frequent Byer liabilities (151) (136) (215) {217)
Other creditors 5 13 7 21
Proposed dividends 138 138 197 220
Pension cost accruals 136 10 194 i6
Accruals and deferred income 7 6 10 9
Long-term liabilities
Loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements 474 570 676 909
Accruals and defesred income (i9) {15} {1%) (24}
Provisions for liabitities and charges
Deferred rax
Effect of the above adjustments | {5) (31 (N (5
Effecr of differences in methodology i {950) (1,090} {1,355) (1,748}
(955) (1.099) (1.362) (1,753)
{881} (758} (1.255) (1,208}
Shareholdess’ equity as adjusted to accord with US GAAP 2,334 2,389 3,329 3811
* LSS amounts are included for information only. Transiation rate E1=$%1.43 £1=51.60
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Five year summaries
For the five years ended March 31, 2001

Group profit and loss account

£ mitlion 2GGE 2690 i9es e 307
Turnover 9,278 8,240 8,892 8,642 8,359
Operating expenditure {8,898) {8.856) (8450} (8,138) {7.813)
Operating profit 380 84 442 504 546
Share of operating profit in associates 64 75 62 69 87
Other income and charges 1 5 27 19 52
Writeback of provision against investment in US Airways Group, Inc. 125
{Loss)/profit on sale of fixed assets and investments (69} 249 5t 162 17
Net interest payable {226) (408} (357) (181} {(187)
Profit before tax 150 5 225 580 640
Tax (22) (15) {19} (133) (%0)
Profit/(loss) afrer tax 128 (1 206 447 550
Minority interests {2) 13 3
Non equity minority interests (12) (11
Profit/{loss) for the year 114 {21} 206 460 553
Dividends (193) {195) {191) {176} (154)
Retained {loss)/profit for the year (79) (216} 15 284 399
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 10.6p (2.0)p 19.5p 44.7p 557p
Dituted earnings per share 10.5p n/a 192p 422p Silp
Dividends per share 17.90p 17.90p 17.90p 16.60p 15.05p
Geographical analysis of group turnover and operating profit
By arwe of desting
€ mi:biiun 20681 2005 45y iJos gy
Tureover
Europe 3,388 3400 3,409 3214 3168
The Americas 3,450 3253 3272 3,073 2,861
Africa, Middie East and Indian sub-continent 1304 1,220 1,133 1,118 1,134
Far East and Australasia 1,136 1,067 1,078 1,237 1,196
9,278 8,940 8,892 8,642 8359

Operating profic
Europe {172} (310) (166) (127 6
The Americas 470 308 451 395 364
Africa, Middle East and indian sub-continent 92 62 124 125 157
Far East and Australasia {10} 24 33 i1} 746

380 84 442 504 673
Exceptional operating charge for restructuring costs (127)

380 &4 442 504 546
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Group balance sheet

£ miihon

2681 2083 1964 1652 [
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 60 62
Tangible assets 10,766 10,294 4,839 3,667 7588
Investments 426 567 402 388 684
11,252 10923 10241 3,055 8272
Current assets 2,446 2,592 2,583 2,245 2164
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year {3,308} {3,366) {3,048} (2,821) (3,160)
Net current liabilities (862) (774} (465) (576) (996)
Total assets less current liabilities 10,330 10,149 9,776 8,479 7.276
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (6,901) {6,728) {6.356) (5,128} (4,260)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (70) {81) (65) {30) {38)
3,419 3,340 3,355 3.321 2958
Capitat and reserves
Called up share capital 271 270 268 260 251
Reserves 2,944 2877 3,087 3,061 2,733
Minarity interest 18 16 {26)
Non equity minority interest 186 177
3,419 3340 3.355 3321 2958
Group cash flow statement
£ million 26M 2054 1564 fags 1967
Cash inflow from operating activities 1,251 1,186 1241 736 1,212
Dividends received from associates 23 44 i1 12 14
Returns on investments and servicing of finance (342} (315) {309) {269) (221)
Tax 15 (2} {40} (134} {83)
Capital expenditure and financial investment (457) (146) (118} 61 [944)
Acauisitions and disposals 26 {218) {6} 75 (16)
Equity dividends paid (194} {242) {113) (148} (131)
Cash inflow/(outflow) before management of liquid resources and financing 332 307 G666 433 (139)
Management of liquid resources 159 g {363} {90} 560
Financing (521) {319) {235) {372) {392)
{Becrease)/increase in cash (30} (3 68 {29) 29
Group financing requirement and tangible fixed asset expenditure
L rfiion 2001 200 1oy 1968 1457
Total financing requirement for the year (331) (352} {804) (869) (572}
Total tangible fixed asset expenditure, net of progress payment refunds 1,405 1,291 1,807 1,638 1,485
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Operating and financial statistics
For the five years ended March 31, 2001

Mainline scheduled services (Note 1 and 2)

200t 2000 1995 908 1997
Traffic and capacity
Revenue passenger km (RPK) m 116674 117,463 118,310 106,739 102,304
Available seat km {ASK) m 162,824 168,361 167,205 149,659 139,789
Passenger load facter % 71.7 69.8 70.7 713 732
Cargo tonne km (CTK} m 4,731 4536 4277 4,181 3790
Total revenue tonne km (RTK) m 16,409 16,256 16,075 14,818 14,004
Total available tonne km (ATK} m 24,228 24,400 23,982 21410 19,967
Overall load factor % 67,7 66.6 67.0 69.2 70.2
Passengers carried ‘060 36,221 36,346 37,090 34,377 33,440
Tonnes of cargo carried ‘600 907 897 855 816 721
Frequent Flyer RPKs as a percentage of total RPKs (Note 3) % 2.1 22 23 22 20
Financial
Passenger revenue per RPK p 6.29 584 5.91 6.38 647
Passenger sevenue per ASK p 451 467 418 4.55 473
Cargo revenue per CTK p 12,13 11.99 12.32 14.02 14.78
Average fuel price (US cents/US gailon} 103.94 7146 48.66 64.70 7590
Operations
Unduplicated route km ‘000 739 678 686 769 759
Punctuality - within 15 minutes % 80 81 79 80 82
Regularity % 98.5 39.0 992 98.0 992
MNotes:

1

Qperating statistics do not include those of associated undertakings (Qantas Airways, Comair and Iberia} and franchisees {BASE Limited,

British Mediterranean Atrways, British Regionat Airfines, GB Airways, Loganair, Maersk Air U¥, National Jet Italia, Sun Air {Scandinavia) and

Zambian Air Services).

The carriage of passengers on Frequent Flyer Programme is evaluated on a ticket by ticket basis.

By 00401 Annual Raport

Maipline scheduled services include those operated by British Airways Plg, Britsh Alrways (European Operations at Gagwick]) Lud and Brymon Adrways Lid.




Operating and financial statistics
For the five years ended March 31, 2001

Total group operations (Notes 1 and 2)

finchiling Deursohe BA, Adr Liberie, Chrybiver Expiress anid go 20i% 2006 sy 1968 e

Traffic and capacity
Revenue passenger km (RPK)

m 123,197 127,425 125951 113,043 106,059
Avaifable seat km (ASK}) m 172,524 183,158 178,820 159,921 146,182
Total revenue tonne ke (RTK) m 16,987 12,215 16,831 15,406 14,336
Total available tonne km (ATK) m 25,196 25,840 25114 22,403 20,542
Passengers carried ‘000 44,462 46,578 45,049 40,955 38180
Revenue aircraft km ™ 737 742 664 64 579
Revenue flights ‘000 499 538 439 420 399
Break-even overalt load factor % 644 659 634 64.4 63.6
Financial
Interest cover times 1.7 1.0 1.7 4.5 4.5
Dividend cover nmes 0.6 0.1} 1.1 26 3.6
Operating margin Yo 4.1 .9 59 58 81
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisaticn
and rentais (EBITDAR) m 1,509 1,130 1427 1.385 1,541
Net debt/total capital ratio % 54.5 639 62.2 581 570
Total traffic revenue per RTK p 49.64 47.01 48.04 5t16 0 5307
Total traffic revenue per ATK p 33.47 31.32 3220 3518 37.04
Net operating expenditure per RTK p 47.40 46.52 4542 4748 48.37
Net operating expenditure per ATK p 31,96 30.99 3044 3293 3376
Operations
Average manpowes equivalent (MPE) 62,844 65,640 64,051 60,770 59,218
RTKs per MPE ‘000 270.3 262.3 262.8 2535 2421
ATKs per MPE "GO0 400.9 3937 3921 3687 346.9
Adtrcraft in service at year end 338 360 135 330 308
Aircraft utitisation (average hours per aircraft per day) 9.75 8.78 871 848 346
Notes:

1 Operating statistics do not include those of associated undertakings {Qantas Airways, Comair and Iberia) and franchisees (BASE Limited, British Mediterranean

; Airways, British Regional Airlines, GB Airways, Loganair, Maersk Air UK, Natipnal Jet lzalia, Sun Air (Scandinavia} and Zambian Air Services).

2 Group operating and financial statistics for the year ended March 31, 1997 included Air Liberté since its acquisition by the group in January 1997 and
excluded the exceptional operating charge of ££27 million. No results for Air Liberté are included for the year ended March 31, 2001.
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Aircraft fleet

Mumber 0 senace vl groap eompanies at March 31, 200
Cin balange Operating leases AU00 T Auerips Anprage
shest off baiynoe sheat Futsie FovRRLe bours per Hge
Extend:ble Othar torat deiiverias Optios hours Bows givcrait/day {yearst
Maintine (Note i and 2)
Concorde (Note 3} 7 7 2,105 2.21 243
Boeing 747-200 12 1 13 61,087 11.39 20.4
Boeing 747-400 56 56 252,399 12.24 6.8
Boeing 777 40 40 5 10 161,932 12,24 2.8
Boeing 767-300 21 21 78,870 5.39 8.2
Boeing 757-200 42 2 1 45 126,000 6.98 12.1
Airbus A318 12 12
Airbus A319 (Note 4) 11t 10 21 18 120 36,401 6.31 0.9
Airbus A320 10 10 20 23,274 6.38 12.2
Boeing 737-200 15,761 6.40
Boeing 737-300 3 8 19,595 7.67 53
Boeing 737-400 22 5 7 34 1€0,710 8.12 9.0
Boeing 737-500 10 10 12,558 5.85 8.7
Turbo Props (Mote 5) 15 15 38,098 6.87 74
Embraer R]145 7 7 14 10,717 6.46 1.0
Hired aircraft 114,872
Sub total 221 18 48 287 55 162 1,054,379 918 8.1
Deutsche BA, CityFlyer Express and go (Note 6)
Boeing 737-300 3Q 30 86,983 735 4.7
Avro RJ100 (Note 7) 5 10 15 1 & 22,322 5.56 2.0
Turbo Props {Note 8) 6 [ 17,182 4.71 5.0
Sub total 5 16 30 51 1 6 126,487 6.70 3.8
Croup total 226 34 78 338 56 168 1,180,866 8.79 7.5
Notes:

1 Includes those operated by British Airways Plc, British Airways (European Operations at Gatwick} Ltd and Brymon Airways Etd.

2 Excludes 1 McDonnell Douglas DC10-30, 3 Boeing 737-200s and 2 Boeing 757-200s stood down pending disposal or return to lessor, 1 Boeing 747-400

sub-leased to Qantas and 2 Boeing 737-300 delivered but not yet in service,

3 7 Concordes are currently stood down as a resulr of the investigation into the Air France accident of July 25. Modification work has commenced

and we are confident that Concorde will resume services in the not oo distant future, pending the reissuing of a certificate of airworthiness by the

Ciwii Aviation Authority.

4 Options include reserved delivery positions and, if taken, may be A319, A320 or A321.

5 De Havilland Canada DHC-8s,

with Air Liberté.

& 6 ATR 72 for CityFlyer Express.
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Includes 4 owned by British Airways Plc and t owned by British Airways Leasing Limited which are operated by CityFlyer Express.

Net reductions since March 31, 2000 include 14 McDonnell Douglas aircraft, 15 Fokker aircraft and 3 ATR aircraf, totalfing 32 aircraft disposed of




Shareholder information

Shareholders
As at May 15, 2001 there were 265,107 shareholders (May 17, 2000: 264,19 1). An analysis is given below.

Percentage of Parcanuige Potconiage of Fproantige
Stee oof sinarehehiing shasenaiders of shares Llassticating of sharen shiereholdors
1 -1.000 85.66 6.46 Individuals 96.74 14,12
1,001 - 5,000 12.87 5.87 Bank or Nominee 2.24 80.30
5,001 - 10,000 0.84 1.40 Insurance companies 0.05 1.16
10,001 - 50,000 036 1.81 Pension trusts 0.01 (.84
50,001 - 100,000 047 1.19 Investment trusts 0.05 0.06
100,001 - 256,000 0.07 2.77 Othery corporate bodies 0.91 3,52
250,001 - 500,000 0.05 4.06
500,601 750,000 0.02 2,88
750,061 - 1,000,000 0.1 272
Qver 1,000,000 0.05 70.84

100.00 1C0.00 100.00 100.00

Franklin Resources Inc., The Capital Group Companies Inc. and Wellington Management Company have non-beneficial interests in 5.85 per cens, 4.95 per
cent and 4.15 per cent of the shares of the company respectively.

General Information

Financial Calendar
Financial year end March 31, 2001

Annual General Meeting July 17, 2001

Announcement of 2001-2002 results and dividends

First quarter results to June 30, 2001 August 2001

Second quarter results 1o September 30, 2001 November 2001

Interim dividend Novemnber 2001 {payable January 2002)

Third quarter results ro December 31, 2001 February 2002

Preliminary announcement mid May 2002

Report and Accounts june 2002

Final dividend May 2002 {payable Juty 2002)
Registered Office
waterside, PO Box 365, Harmondsworth, UB7 OCGB

Registered number - 1777777

Qutside advisers
Company Registrars: Computershare Services Pic, PO Box 82, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS$3 7NH
ADR Depositary:  Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, 60 Wall Street, New York, NY 10260

Unsolicited mail

British Airways is obliged by law 1o make its share register available on request to other organisations who may then use it as a mailing Jist. This may result in
your receiving unsolicited mail. If you wish to limir the receipt of unsolicited mail you may do so by writing to the Mailing Preference Service, an independent

organisation whose services are free to you. Once your name and address have been added te its records, it will advise the companies and other bodies which
support the service that you no longer wish to receive unsclicited mail,

If you would like more details please write to: The Mailing Preference Service, FREEPOST 22, London WIE 7EZ,
British Airways asks organisations which obtain its register to support this service.

Sharegift

Shareholders with small numbers of shares may like to consider donating their shares to charity under ShareGiflt, administered by The Orr Mackintosh
Foundarion, Derails are available from the Company Registrars.
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Glossary

Mainline

Avaifable seat Kilometres (ASK}

Available tonne Kilometres (ATK}

Revenue passenger kilometres {RPK}
Cargo onne Kitomenres {CTHY
Revenue tonne Kilomerres (RTK]
L.oad factor

Passenger laad facior

Overall 1oad facior

Break-even load factor

Frequent fyer RPKs as 3 prrcenrage
of roral RPKs

Revenue per RPR

Toral rraffic revenue per RTK
TForal traffic vevenus per ATK
Punctualicty

Regulariry

Lnduplicared route Kilomerres

Operating cash fow/market value of assets
P 4

Interese covey
Dhvidend cover
Operating margno

Ney debe

Foral capiral

Mat debi/voral capical ratio
Manpower equivalent
EBRITDAR

n/a

Published by Black Sun plc. Photagraphy by John wildgoose.
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This includes British Aieways Plc, British Airways (European Operations at Gatwick) Led and
Brymon Airways Ltd.

The number of seats available for sale multiplied by the distance flown.

The number of tonnes (2,240 |b) of capacity available for the carriage of revenue load {passenger and
cargo) multinlied by the distance flown.

The number of revenue passengers carried multiplied by the distance flown.

The number of revenue tonmes of carge {freight and mail) carried multiphied by the distance flown.
The revenue load in tonnes multiptied by the distance flown.

The percentage refationship of revenue load carried to capacity available.

RPK expressed as a percentage of ASK.

RTK expressed as a percentage of ATK.

The load factor required o equate total traffic revenue with operating costs.

The amount of frequent flyer RPKs expressed as a percentage of total RPKs is indicative of the

proportion of total passenger traffic that is represented by redemption of frequent flyer points in the year.
Passenger revenue from mainkine scheduled operations divided by mainline scheduled RPK.

Revenue from rotal traffic (scheduled and non-scheduled) divided by RTEK.

Revenue from total traffic (scheduled and non-scheduled) divided by ATK.

The industry’s standard, measured as the percentage of flights departing within 15 minutes of schedule.
The percentage of flights completed to flights scheduled, excluding flights cancelled for comnerciat reasons,
All scheduled flight stages counted once, regardless of frequency or direction.

Group operating profit plus depreciation, less rentals for aircraft and property, divided by market
value of assets.

The number of times profit before taxation and net interest payable covers the nel interest payable.
The number of times profit for the year covers the dividends paid and proposed.

Operating profit as a percentage of turnover.

Leans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements, ptus Convertible Capital Bonds, net of short-term
loans and deposits and cash less overdrafts,

Capictal and reserves phus net debt,
Met debt as a ratio of total capital,
Number of employees adjusted for part-time workers and overtime,
Farnings before interest, 1ax, depreciation, amortisation and reniats.

Not applicable.




If only all Executive
decisions were this easy.

loin the British Airways Executive Club at
www.britishairways.com/execclub/join
and turn frequent flights into free” flights. lt's ane

executive decision nobody will disagree with.

*subject to applicable taxes, fees and charges BMSH AZRWAY S -




www.britishairways.com

Our investor relations website is

www.bashares.com

Our website for individual shareholders is

www.bashareholders.com




